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HIGHLIGHTS

GROUP RESULTS

1 Group
% 199293 1991.92
M
Turnover £m 5,566 522¢
&
L Operating prafit £m Mo kX2
E Profit befor 1axation £m 185 434
Profit after taxation Im 178 395
Capital and reserves £m 1,534 2,604
Bamings per share - basic P 24.1 5.6
E - basic adjusted + P 4.1 53
- fully diluted adjusted + P 223 3ro
E Dividends per share ? 10.60 1018
TRAFFIC
J
! Available tonne kilometres m 15424 13818
Revenue tonne kilometres m 10313 8111
| l Passengers carvied 000 28,100 25422
| Cargo carried (tonnes) 000 532 302
R
l l Owenall load factor (scheduled scrvices) % 662 65.6
i
8
! EMPLOYEES AND PRODUCTIVITY )
! i Average aumber of cmployzes 48,960 56409
Avallable tonne kilometres per employee boo 3150 274.1
i
I Revenue tonne kilometres per employes 27 4] 2106 1507
i
i ® Restated in aecordance with Financiol Reporting Standard 3.
N +Adjusted to eucliede profit on sale of engine overkaul business,
L
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

In my fisst Repornt 1o you, | reflect on 3 year of ups and
downg. | was honoured by your Board in being appointed to
succeed Lord King, whose ountanding leadenhip for the
past 12 yean has done so much for your Campany, Qur
results were achieved in the face of the toughest commercial

. warket conditions I can remember, even those prevailing

imamediatcly post the Gulf Warin 1991, When compared to
our competitors in Europe, North America, and even in
many parts of Asia, we did well and can hold our heads
high. Thus tequired a tremendous effort by our employees
throughout the world, whe fully lived up to the fine
reputation they have developed in recent years for a high
standard of customer secvice,

Your Board accepts responsibility for, and regrets, the Virgin
saga. which cast a shadow over our Company, However, the
relatively small number of unconnected incidents involving
a very small number of employees must be kept in penpec-
tive, We have beea able to implemenc a significant paa of
our averall strategy for the future through the major invest-
ments in the USAir Group, Inc., the fourth largest in
passenpes rumber tenss of the US sidines: in Qantas, which
itself had only recently acquited the domestic Australian
Airlines; in TAT European Airines, the second aidine of
Franee, and in Deutsche BA, operating both domesdc and
international routes in Germany. We were alio succeusful in
esuablishing BA Regional to take over 2l of the British
Alrvrays services and representaton in Birmingham,
Manchester and Scotlind, excluding the Shurtde services. In
MNovember we concluded the acquisition of the printipal
scheduled Buropean and domestic routes of Dan-Air based
at Gatwick, which has enabled us to esnablish 2 new business
there with a cost structure which offens hope of 2 profiable
operation in the near-term future, We aeed 1o recogrise the
nuny achicvements cecorded in the fice of cotsiderable and
sustained oppesition from variows sources principally repre-
senting vested interests, Wr aic now moving ahead with the
esablishment of coordinadon and steering groups for cach
of the partnerships to seck the synergy benefits available
both on the revene and tos sides.

While doing al} of this we have not forgotten our service
camntitments 1o SuT fwtemen. We have embarked on 3
major programme of improvements in Concorde, with a
complete refurbishment of the interion of the aircrait ~ the
first of which will be flying in June, In First Class there are
enhancements, especially with the ingodociion of the now
Sleeper Serviee on some 30 routes, and in Club Wosld, with
ncw seats, the mott comprehemive video system availible in
business class and improved in-fight service, We opened the
new pavilion of special lounges at Heathrow's Tenminal
Four, providing comforuble and attractive facilities for ali
our premium elass travellens and for eligible members of the
Execudve Club. A new Oasis Eounge has also been opened
1o cater for interconunenal pasengers tnnsfeming beoween
flights a1 Heathrow. We have apened 1a Arivak Lounge at
Garwick and announced 2 similar Geility for Heathrow for
September 1993 ~ these lounges will enable preminm class
passengers and Executive Club members 10 tike 2 shower,

to have breakfast and generally to prepare thernsclvet before
Yeaving the airport for their business and other appointments,
following ovemnight arrvals.

We have continued to win awards including ‘Altline of the
Year' from both Business Traveller magazine and from Air
Transport World in the United States - the fint airline 10
win this award thrce times, and mozt recently we were -
named a5 "Trznsathndc Airline of the Year' by the readers
of the Ashington Pickett Travel Newslerter in the United
States. In January we anpounced a new uniform for our
cuntomer service stall and cabin crew, designed by Paul
Couelloe and which will be wom by our emplayees starting
from the beginning of next year.

We are committed to a policy of equal job oppartunity,

As part of the Opportunicy 2000 initiadve, percentage targets
have been sct for the emplaymient of women and ethnic
minority managers by the tum of the century and a dedicated
Equal Opporunities exceutive has been appointed 10
monitor progress, Our “Winnitig (or Customens’ motivational
employee programme has continued throughout the year and
nealy twenty four thowand wall fave alecady attended. |
think you ¢an see that we have every right to be vety proud
of this Company, onc whick continues to be among the most
innovative and most succensful in the world airline induwary.

We are well positioned to fulfil our vision of the future, in
which we sce increasing levels of deregulation around the
world leading to globalisztion of our industry, This will see
the eemaval of restrictions and barrders in tenms of boch
traffic and capital invesanent 2¢vots borders, Eventually it
will position ovr industry in a similar way to most other
industrics which is likcly to cvolve into a relatively few very
larpe global partnenhips, with a supng presence in all of the
key marken, and many, much smalle: sirlines operating in
specific geogrphic or market segments.

Wre are worlung hard 1o improve funther our customer
service and to restore filly the innge of your Company,

1 offer my thanks 1o all of our emplayees for their
oustanding contribution and 1 exprets my appreciation

to my [cllow Board memben for their support and for the
extraordinary 2mount of dime and attention which they have
had 1o gve 1o your Company's business. 1 should like to
express my appreciadon for the contribution 1o the Company
made by Lord White of Hull, who is reticing from the
Baard this year. In conclusion, | want 1o pay a special tibute
o my predecessor, withour whose widom, direction and
feadership. we would not be whete we are coday, It is
geatifying to know that we will continue to benefit from

his counsel 4t aut first Pretident.

Sir Colin Marthall Chaipnan
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BOARD MEMBERS, PRESIDENT
AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

i BOARD MEMBERS
4 Sir Colin Murshall (59) Chaimman
; Chairman since February 1993, Formedy Deputy Chainman and Chicef Execunive. Joined the Board of Bricish
Airways as Chief Executive in 1983, Director, Grand Metropolitan PLC, IBM United Kingdom Holdings
E Limited, Midland Bank plc, HSBC Holdings ple, USAir Group, Inc. and Qantas Airways Limited. (B, D)

Sir Michael Angus (63) Deputy Chainnan and Chainnan of the Board Audit, Nominations and Remurcration
v Committees, President, Confederation of Brtish Industry. Chairman, Whitbread PLC, Deputy Chainman,
i National Westminster Bank Ple, Director, Thom EMI ple. (A,C,D)

Robert Ayling (46) Group Managing Director
Group Managing Director since February 1993, Previously Director of Marketing and Operations,
E Company Secretary and Legal Director and Director of Human Reesources. Formerly Under Secretary at
the Department of Trade. Director, Sun Alliance Group PLC.
Berck Stevens (54) Chief Finandaal Qfficer
Chicf Financial Officer since 1989. Formerly Finance Director, TSB Group ple. Director, USAir Group, Inc.

‘ Captain Colin Barmnes (59) Ciaimman of the Board Air Safety Review Committee
Joined the Board of British Airways in 1991 after 36 years flying with the aitline as a pilot, the last ten as
. Chief Pilot and the final five as Director of Flight Crew. (A, B)

. Michael Davies (58)
I Chairman, Calor Group PLC, Wiltshier PLC and Perkins Foods PLC. Deputy Chairman, T1 Group Ple.
(AB,C.D)
Sir Francis Kennedy KCMG CBE (67} Specal Adviser to Chairman and Board
‘ Diplomatic Service, 1964-86. Director, Fluor Danicl Corp. and Smith & Nephew ple. (B)
The Hon Charles H. Price IT (62)
X Former United States Ambassador to the UK. Chairman, Mereantile Bank of Kansas City, Direrctor, Mercantile
¥ Bancomporation Inc., Hanson Ple, Texaco Inc., Sprint Corponation and New York Times Company Inc. (A, B, C, D)
Lord White of Hull KBE (70)
Chairman, Hanson Industries. (A, C, D)

The letters in brackets indicate inembership of the following standing committees of the Board: .
(A) Audit Committee, (B) Air Safety Poeview Commintee, {C) Remuneration Committee, (D) Nominations Committee.

PRESIDENT

Lord King of Warctnaby (75)
Chairman 1981-1993

-,
m

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Michacl Bawt (38) Dirctor of Marketing

Terry Buthield (52) Head of Netwwre Management
Anthony Cocklin (50) Hrad of Communications
Alistair Comming (58) Direstor of Engineering

Dr Michael Davies (55) Dirrctor of Health Senvices
Robert Falkner (45) Group Chief Aczountant
Tony Galbnith (54) Treasurer

Valerie Gooding (43) Dirertor of Business Unies
Kevin Hatton {(48) Managing Director World Caro

Brian Haydon {47) Directar of Informarion Management

Peter Jones (44) Head of Public Relations

Captain Jock Lowe {49) Director of Flight Operatians
Clive Mason (49) Director of Purchasing end Supply
Roger Maynard (50) Director of Corposate Straiegy
John Patterson (45) Head of Operations

Gail Redwood (44) Company Seeretary

Valerie Scoular (37) Director of Human Resources
Mike Streen (45} Director of Sendce Delivery

Waker van West (50) Group Finandal Controller
Menvyn Walker (34) Legal Direcior

David Holmes (58) Direvror of Gavenment and Industry Affain John Waison (49) Diirector of Regions and Sales

David Hyde (56) Directer of Ssfety, Security & Environment

Mambership as 3t the time of publicanon,
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

British Airways entered the private sector in 1987 with
high stndards of Corporare Govemnance. Nevertheless
tallowing publication of Sir Adrian Cadbury's dnaft
report on Corporate Governance, the Board sctup a
Committee of non-executive Director, under my
chainmnanship, to examine the Company's procedures in
the light of the tecommended Code of Best Practice.
Many of Cadbury's recommendations were already in
place: for example, we had effective Audit and
R.emuncration Committees of non-exccutive Directors
and 1o this framewaork we proposed the addition of'a
Nominations Commitiec.

The Committee also examined the desirable corporate
struceure to follow Lord King's planned retirement in
1993 and it was their recommendation that Sir Colin
Manshall should become Chainman with 3 Group
Managing Dircctor being appointed, responsible for
major Campany operations. The Commitiee also
recommended that the number of non-exccutive
Directors resident in the UK should be increased and
that my own role as Depury Chairman should be
expanded to provide 2 regulir point of contact for the
executive Dirertorns. These, ind 2 number of other
recommendacions, were accepted by the Board in
December 1992,

The Corporate Governarce of the Company was put
o0 the test when Mr Richard Branson made serious
allegations about the Company's business behaviour,
28 described in the Dirccton’ Repor.

Wpon first receiving these allegations the Directors
promptly required an investigation of the matters alleged

and a report to the Board. This resulted in the conclusion

thae there was no substance in che accusation that the
Commpany had engaged in any campaign against Virgin
other than through narmal marketing and promotional
eflora. Further enquiny by the Company’s lawyens
during the proccedings Jed 10 a report that there had

been some unconnected incidents of regrettatle conduce
on the part of 2 few employees but that these had not
been authorised by any Director.

Your non-exccutive Ditectors, who had independent
legal advice, played a major part in the many Board
discussions which followed this report. They asked for

and received assurance from each Board member that

he did not implement nor authorise any improper action
against Mr Branson or Virgin Atlantic,

A Commiteee of non-cxecutive Directors, under my
chalrmanship, was formed to monitor the actions being
taken as a result of the report made to the Board, For
some time the Company had been drafting 2 company-
wide Code of Business Conduct and this has now been
introduced and the Committee has the additional
respansibility for ensuring its compliance.

I am grateful to my colleagues who gave us enormous
support and much time during those difficule days,

inevitably I have dealt mainly with the Corporate
Govermance issue which | know has concerned you all,
However, the principal role of non-executive Directors
is not to be policemen but to contribute together with
the executive Directors to the growth and vitality of the
business, We have every opportunity to comment on and
subscribe to strategy and other matters through open Board
discussion. Through rthis we hope we can help to mainain
British Airways as a world clas, profitable and efficient
company. This is our primary duty to shareholders.

Sir Michael Angus Deputy Chairman
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DIRECTORS'

K REPORT

mm

The Diteeton have pleasuce in presenting their Reportand
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 1993, The sccounts are
set out on Pages 1010 38,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

“The main activines of Brinsh Airways Ple and its wbiidiary
undertakings are the operation of intermational and domestic
scheduled and charter ait services for the camiage of passengers,
freight and mail and the provision of ancillary services.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Profit afier taxation, attributable to membens of British Aitways
Ple, amounted to 178 million, against £395 milli - 4 (including
L1490 million profit on the sale of the engine overhaul business)
in the previous year, The Board recommends no final dividend.
Aninterim dividend of J.06p pes share was paid on 15 Januaty
and 2 second interim dividend of 2.54p per share in licu of 2
final dividend was pard on 5 April, making 3 woral of 10.60p per
share, an increase of 4,1 per cent on the previous year, ARer
providing £79 million for dividends, the rewined profit for the
vear amounted to £99 mitlion.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Bnancial sarements for the year ended 31 March 1993 have
been presented in accordance with Finineial Reporting Standard
*Reporing Financial Perfformante’ issued by the UK Accounting
Stndirds Beard in Oceober 1992, The standaed has inroduced
new fonmat requirements, particulardy for dwe profit and Joss
account, designed 10 provide improved and more comprehensive
disclowure of financial performance.

INVESTMENTS

USAir On 21 January 199), Britith Alrways announced that it
had agreed temmu for a new alliance between British Airways and
USAir Group, Inc. The fint stage of the transaction has already
been completed with the investment by die Group of US 1300
million ({198 million) in new convenible preferred stock of
USAir and the signing of a flight code sharing agreement,

The Group aha agreed in cady May to invest an additiona

US $100.7 miltion in convertible preferved stock of USAir
pursuant to the excrcise of pre-cmption rights following the
exercise of employee aprions and the public offering by USAir
of US $231 million (net) of commen stock in the US market,
The Group has the right 1 nominate three of the 16 dicectors
of USAir and, accordingly, Sir Colin Manshall {Chairman), Derek
Stevens (Chief Finencial Officer) and Roger Maynard (Director
of Corporate Scracegy) have joined the USAir Board, Further
detatls of this investment are given in INote 15 to the Accounts.

Qurtes On 10 March 1993, Brtish Ainways completed the
agreemenc for the Group to acquire 25 per cent of Qantxs Airways
Limited for A$666 million (304 million), Under the Awtidlian
Govemment's privatianon plan, the remuining 75 per cent of
shares in Qantas is expected to be offcred to the pubhe wathin
the rext 12 months, The Group has the right to cominate three
of the 12 directon of Qanus and, accordingly, Sir Colin Marshall,
Roger Maynard and Nick Tait (General Manages for Australia
and New Zeatand) have joined the Qantys Board, Further denils
of this investment are given in Note 13 vo the Accounus,

Dar-Air  In November 1992 Bricish Airways acquired, for a
nominal £1 and the assumption of all iws liabilities, the auets of
Davies & Newnun Holdings PLC, being principally the
scheduled services operated by Dan-Air Services Limited from
Gatwick, Subsequently that campany changed its name 1o
Britith Auwrways (European Openanons at Gatwick) Limited and
in Febpaary 1993 moved its opesations 1o the North Tenninal,
Further detaids of this acquisition are pven in Note 12 to the
Accounus.

TAT On | anuary 1993, Baith Airways asquired for
L15 million, a2 49.9 per cent share of the equuty of TAT
Eurcpean Aitines $.A,, the largest independent French surhine

which operates an extenuive network of domestc and intemaoonat
routes. Britsh Airways has an option to purchase the remasnung

50.) per cent of the equity on or befare 1 Apail 1997, Further

details of this investment are given in Note 14 to the Accounts,

LITIGATION

In December 1991 My, Richard Branson wrote an open letter to

the non-execudve Directors of the Company slleging that

British Airways had conducted a hottile and concerted campaign

against Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited (Virgin) and hims<lf,

That allegation was rejected in terms which questioned the good

faith snd madivation of Virgin and Mr, Branson who then
commaenced libel procecdings, In the course of the libel
procecdings it was discovered by the Company's lawyens that
there bad been a few unconnected incidents of conducr on the
part of 4 few employees that gave Mr, Banson a basis for
concern, The fet were disclosed to Virgin, apology was made
and the libel liigation settled for 610,000 plus conts. {n 2
statement fead out in open court it was emphasised that the
Ditcctors of Dritish Airways were not party to any concerted
campaign agrinst Me, Branson and Virgin Airways, Bnnsh
Alrways made it clear that it wished to discharge any other
legrimate elaims by Virgin in relaton 1o any other damage
Virgin's business might have suffered 1 a result of these evenn
1nd to this end an offer of setdement, to include 3 long-standing
engineering dispute, was mide with the ateenative of arbitranon,
Virgin tenminated thote talks and has since Bssued 2 writ afleging
breach of confidentiality and copynght. A Code of Buniness
Conduct has been introduced in the Company under the
supervision of & Committee of the Board,

AIRCRAFT ORDERS
Ne ordens for new aireraft were placed in the year, Options on
four Bocing T47-400s, six Bocing 737-4001 and one Bocing
757-200 aircraft were not taken up. Delivery of two Bocing
747-400¢ was rescheduled from 1994 to 1996 and 1997,

Options on two Bocing 747-4001 were converted into furure

deliveries. Future delivery of two Boeing 737-400s for entry into

service will oceur 23 3 result of the acquisition of Dan-Air,

AIRCRAFT FLEET CHANGES
Four Boeing 747-400s, three Bocing 767-300s, cleven Bocing

737-400s and onc BAc ATP were delivered to the airline, of these
one Bocing 747-400 and onc Bocing 737-400 were delivered in
March 1992 but did not enter service uncil April 1993, A further
BAc ATP entered service on a shont-temm opetating lease, Three

Bocing 757-200s entered the fleet on operating leases,

As a result of the 2cquisition of Dan-Air, nine Bocing 737-400s
and three Boeing 737-100s were added 1o the flect, all on
operating leases.

One McDonnell Douglas 13C-10-30 was sio0d down, One
Lockheed TrStar 50, two HS 748 and one BAe ATP were
returmed to the lesson, Two Boeing 757-200s were returned
from lease to other aitlines. Two Bocing 737-200s were leased
1o another aiflinr,

Buring the year wo Lockheed TriStar 200s and one McDonnell
Douglas DC-10-30 were leased to other aitlines on 3 shon-term
bass, Two Lockheed TriStar 2008 remain on short-term lease to

another aisline,

FINANCING
Ten Bozing 737-400 (one of which did not enter sepvice unnl
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Apnl 199)) and two Bocing 7673004 were purchased outrighs,
financed out of existing Facilites by 18 year US dollir foans
secuted on the aircrafi. A further Bocing 767-300 which way
de¥igemd in March 1992 was simibirly financed by way of a
Rerety mongage loan,

Two Bocing 7474005 {one of which did nat enter iervice until
Apeil 1993} were acquired by way of 15 year Stering finance
Jeases and 4 further two Bocing 747400 were acquired under
Japanere leveraged leases, One Bocing 767-300, which was
delivered in March 1992 was subsequently financed under a
Japanese leveraged fease amangement and one Bocing 747-300,
which was delivered in March 1993 is expected to be similardy
fnanced in the fnancial year 1993-94,

Twa Bocing 757200 were s0ld and leased back on operting
leases with 3 minimum leass 1eem of five years and 3 Bosing
747-200 was similarly the subject of 3 sale and lease-back [or a
miniinu term of seven years.

During the year, three Docing 747-200s and one Bocing
757-200 have changed from operating lease ta finance lease
arrangements following an extension of the orginal lease periods.

In Masch 1993, a theee year unsecured loan of US31 10 million
was arranged to assist with the funding of the Group™s
investment in USAir,

The Group has been able to finance the investmenn veferred to
carlier from gash resources and bank facilities. This has had the
effect of increasing the Group's rags of ner debt to rotal capiul.
The Directors believe thar, while this nto remains acceptable, it
is in the best interests of the Company to raise further equicy
from sharchelders.

On 18 May 1993 the Directan wall announce a Righns fsue 1o
raise £441.8 million by the e of 185,485,636 new ordinary

shares at 245p par share, The proceeds of the Righs Issue will

reduce net bomrowings.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Ruichard Ellis, Chartered Surveyon, has valued the Group's
principal properties at 31 March 1993 in accordance with the
statements of auset vahudon practice and guidinee notes of the
Royal Insdtution of Chattered Surveyons. Having regard to this
valuation, the opinion of the Directors is that the current value
of the Group's propertics is approximately L£250 nullion in
excets of the et book value disclosed in the Group balince
sheet at 31 March 1992,

1 view of the specialised nature of many of the Group's
opentional properties, such 25 hangan and aircraft maintenance
buildings, 2 significznt proportion of the tow! valuation i on the
basis of depreciated replacement cot, the balance having been
valued on an open macket existing use basis,

ROUTES

During the year Brirish Airways introduced new, or additiona,
services to Mexico City, San Frandiico, Beijing, Scartle,
Vancouver, Hong Kong and, operated through Dritish Asia
Airways, Taipei. In addition British Airways has recendy
introduced new wensatlantic services from Binningham

and Mancheser.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

Difficult trading conditions anocitted with economic reecssion
continued during the year, Yields declined mainly due to
reduced premivm traffic and interse comperitive pressures asa
result of excess capacily in the induny, Despite these problems
the Group has achicved market share growth during the year.

In order to enhance the Group's competitive potidon British

Aurways has begun an exteauve progrmme of product
development for 1 premium brands. This it being supported by
3 worldwide advertmng campaign and the launch of 2 global
frequent fllyer programme,

Briush Adrways exceeded 1u targets for cost savingy duning
the year and remaing comnuned to reducing the cott base
further while mainuining and improving servce quality,
Significant prefit improvement benefits wall be 2dded dunng
the coming year,

The Group's investments In USAir and Qantss give the Group
stravegic affiances in the major markew of North Ametica and the
Pacific region, and the investments in Deutsche BA and TAT
European Aidines increase the ditline’s presence in Continenta)
Europe. Taken together with the Group™s existing extensive
route network, these invesunents give British Airways a stronger
presence in all of the six major world aitline markets,

DIRECTORS

The Directors propose a change to the Articles of Auaciation of
the Company to include the exccutive Directors within the
requirement for one third of the Board ro be re-clected by the
tharcholders annually, Previously the Chaimsan, the Chivt
Executive and one other exccutive Dirtctor were not requirsd
to be re-clected. 1f this proposal is accepted by the shareholden,
the Chairman, $ic Colin Marthall, the Chicf Finanel | Officer,
Mr. Derek Seevens and non-cxecotive Director Mr, Michazl
Davies oflfer themselves for re-clection. Should the proposed
change to Article 88 not be passed, only Mr. Davies would sund
{or re-clection. Lord White docs not wish 1o stand for re~clection
# 2 Dircctor and wall retire from the Board at the annual general
meeting. Afier the year end the Directon appointed to the
Board Baroness O°Cathain and Mr. Charles Mackay, wha being
eligible, offer themselves for election at the annual general mecting.

Sir Colin Marshall's service contract with the Company is
terminable by cither party on thiree yeans' notice and expires in
any event on 16 November 1998, Mr. Stevens’ service contract
with the Company is terminzble by cither party on two yean'
notice and expires in any event on kis 63rd binthday.

The Directors fusther propose 1o inroduce an upper age limit of
70 for Ditecton by further amendment.

The names and dewils of the Direetors are wet out on Page 3
2nd their shate interest are disclosed on Page 47,

LIABILITY INSURANCE

British Airways holds a Directon” and Officen’ liability insurance
policy.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMEINT

In 2 service industry the value added by a committed workforce
is undoubted and the Board acknoudedges the contribution
whith the employees have made during the year. The major
custorner service development initiative for all employees
entiled ‘Winning for Customen’ has continued throughout the
year emphasising the vita! role which every individual has in
reajning the aitline’s customen. ‘Managing Winnen', a two day
addidonal training course for managen, supervitors, captains and
cabin service directors has continned o run in paraliel,

‘Brainwaves’, the employee suggestion wheme to reward oiginal
workable suggestions which benefit the Company, made awards
during the year Gom £25 1o {10,000, 1,400 idexs were submined
and more than £250,000 was thared by employees. The benefit of
these suggestions o the Company it estimated to be £2.8 mullion,
‘British Airways News® is issued fice to employees each week

providing up-~to—date information on what is happening in the
Grroup, 3 daily venion of the headline news is also provided on
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the airline’s computer networks giving insunt access 1o news
around the world.

‘The Comipany has generally enjoyed good industrial reladons
during the year, Changes in working pracuces are ¢swentisl to
reduce coss in the interests of fare profitablity and the concerns
of the workfuree are understood and must be allayed, These
iswues are discussed at re;ulir comultation msetings berwetn
management and the trade unions recognised by the Company,

“The Profic Sharing Share Scheme will not be opezated for the
year 1992-93 because of the lower level of profits,

The second operarion of the Savings Reelated Share Optien
Scheme under which employees wete able to save amouno
between £10 and £100 per month with the option afiet five
years of purchasing shares with the money saved at 135p per
share, will mature on | September 1993,

PENSIONS

The menntal sctuarial valuations of the Airways Pension Scheme
and the New Airways Pension Scheme was camed out at

31 March 1992, The valuations confinmed that the value of the
ausets held was In excess of the value of menbens’ accrued benefits.
As a result a reduction of the Company’s contribunons in respect
of members of the INew Airways Pension Schemie was made.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

Brinsh Airways' policy is to promote equal opporturuty in
employment regardless of gender, race, colour or disability,
subject only to capability and suitability for the task and lega!
requirements, As part of the Opportunity 2000 iniciatve,
percentige argews have been sct for the employmnent of wornen
and etharc minorty managess by the year 2000 and 2 dedicated
Equal Opportunities exccutive has been appointed to moniter
progress. Wherever possible, employees who become disabled
during employment are provided with an sltemadve job which
makes full use of their capabilities,

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Chariuble donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to £409,000 (1992: £482,000) of which the hargest
were to The 50th Anniversary of the Bartle of Batain Appeal

and Tht 1992 Batish Clympie Appeal, No political donanons
were made during the yazr (1992 Cnd).

INCREASE OF SHARE CAPITAL

AND ALLOTMENT OF SHARES
An ordinary resolution to increase the suthorised share capital of
the Company to £327 million by the creation of 240 mithon
new ordinary shares and 2 specadl resolunon to grnt the
Durecton authority to allot shares under Article 13(B) of the
Company’s Anticles of Association are contained 1n the nouce of
annual genenl meeting,

SHAREHOULDERS ~ NON-UK NATIONALS
AU 31 March 1993, 36 per cent of ordinary shares were held by
non-UK nationals, compared with 41 per cent at 31 March 1992,
Having regard to all relevant facsons including the Get that there
are no lange interess of single or asociated non-UK nationak and,
in the abience of unforcieen developments, the Directors do not
expect (but without limiting their freedom to act) to seek to
exercise their powen to restriet non-UK share ownenhup.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
The repors by the Deputy Chairman on Page 4 deseribes the
action uken by the Board in order to respond filly to the
recommendations of Sir Adrian Cadbury's Committce oa the
Financial Aspecis of Corporate Govemance, With the changes
accepted by the Boaed in December 1992, the Company
complics with the Cade of Best Pracuce subject to guidinee yet
10 be inued by the accountancy profestion.

CLOSE COMPANY STATUS
The Company is not a ¢lose company wathin the nicaning of che
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and this positon has
not changed tince the end of the financial year,

AUDITORS
The auditors, Emet & Young, have indicated their wilhngness to
conginue in officc and 1 revolution proposing their
reappointmicnt and autherising the Directon to detennine their
semuneration will be proposed at the annual general meeting.
On behalf of the Board

G F Redwood Sererary
17 May 1993
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
OF TIIEYEAP

The previax profit for the yeas ended 31 March 1993 was L18S willion (1992 £285 wiillion as published, £434 million afler restaterment To refloct Finarkial

Réporting Standard 1), The pre-tax profit for the year was 35.1 per cent lower than the previous year adjusted o exclude Iasd year's profit on the sale of the

engind overbaut business.

0

Group results foc the year ended 31 Mah 1993 once again reflectod the difficut trading conditfons nasaciated with economic recession, particularly
declining yields brought sbout by a nuniber of factors including reduced premium raffic and intinse computilive pressures esulting from exoon capacity in
the industry, Exchange rates also adverscly affected the years resulis, with the summer peak for overseas sales coinciding with a sirang pound whish

¢ seduced the Sterling valus of those sales, The benefits of weaker Sterting 100k time 10 show, since many passengers booked and paid for their tckets before

¢ devaluation, but had begtn 10 appear in the fourth quarter,

Profit after tax was £178 million, equivalent to eamings of 24.1p per share compared (0 35.3p tast year {on any adjusted basis). On a fully difuted basis,
cacnings per share were 22.3p.

Net cash flow from operating activities totalled £629 million, up £38 million on last year. Outlay on new ajrerafl and olier fined atsels inthe year amounted
te £1,038 willion, including £513 million of assets acquired wnder finance feases and hire purchase amtngements (1992 £743 million and £362 million
respectively) and £574 miltion was invested in associated undertakings, including USAlr, Quitas and TAT Europran Airlines, whereas Insf year saw a cash
inflow fromn the sale of the engine overhaul business of £274 million. These were the chief factors it accounting for a financing requirement cf £1, {13 miiliost
againgt ant inflow of £28 million last year,

Borrowings net of cash sad short term deposits (et debly st 3 March (993, amounted 10 £2,453 million, up £1.282 mithion of the previous year. Capital and
Reserves, topether with Convertible Capital Bonds, dectined by £70 willionto £1,534 milliont alter 2 £149 million goodwill set ofTrelating to sequisitior during
the year, The resmtlant net debinolal eapitsd tatio 31 31 March 1993 {defining total capitat as Capital and Reserves, Capital Bonds and net debd) was 62 per

cent compared 1o 42 per tend last year.

For the 12 mionths ended 21 Mareh 1983 Oroup tarmover increased by 6.5 per cent from £5,224 million 10 £5,566 willion. Group expendiiire yoss
by 7.7 per semt from £4,880 miltion 10 £3,256 miliion.

Group operating profit for e year declined by 2.9 per contio £310 miifion, British Alrways’ share of lasses of assosinted undertakings amounted ta

£17 million, principally representing initial start up tosses of Dentschy BA and TAT European Airlines, Other fnwome and charges worsened by £9 millioa in
part due o provision against advances 1o Deutsch BAL Profit on sahe of fied assits was £17 milfion bedow (ast year. Net interest payable rese £23 million

to £111 nuillion, reflecting cumrency Josses on revaluation of general purpose laans, and 1he cost of funding ssset purchases and fovestments made during

the year,

The rvecage mimber of employees in tfie Group during the year to 31 March 1993 was 48,960, 4 redoction of 2.9 per cent on the previeus year,
Productivity, as measured in terms of Group avaifable tonne kilomelres per emsployee, was up by 14.9 per ek, Employee cons increased by

» 3.0 per cent to £1,551 niillion mainly a5 8 tesult of charging the £41 mitlion cost assotiated with stall severance and simsilar ammangements compared to

N £22 million lagt year and the impact of pay settlements for UK employees of 3.6 per cent, offset by the reduction in the average number of employees and
the absence of a stafF bonus for the year,

P
v "

Fuel #ad all oots increased by 7.5 per cent to L3560 rnillion, largely a3 o consequence of an ingrease in flying activity of 10.5 per cent measured in terms of
revenue airerat kilometres and exchange rate changes, offset By a 2.3 per cvnt rednction in the average market price of firc to §9.3 US cents per US
galton for 1992493, Adrerell opetating lease costs and depreeiation combined showed a small inerease, with the effevts ef the farger Meet being offtet by
Sower operating lease costs ceflecting lower interest rates.

.’7'_.

Enginecting and oiher airerafl costs cemained (e satue ax last year, Landing fees and en route cliarges werd up by 16.9 per cent due lo
increases in volume, and i overfiying aisd aitpont passenger charges. Handling charges, eatering and other operating costs inereased by 17.4 per cent
rellecting (he inerease in pastengers samied and many product improvenets buth on the grouwd and in the air,

B

The Jaunch of the new worldwide ndvertising compaign, the plobal frequent flyer proprasune, tegather with incraases in traved agents’ commission and
CRS charges in tine with tumover, fargeiy accounted for the 1.3 per cent increase fy selling casts.

Accommodation, ground equipsrent and currency differences rose by 7.7 por eent 0 £404 miltion i pact due 1o eautals on new lounges and other (ueilitier
at Heathrow, and the inclusion of e cost of property maintenancs which is now subconiratied,

"the peagraphical analysis of Group tumawr and operating profit demonstrates e strength of British Alrways' nawork, Buropean seute opersting proft
increased froms £20 million to £30 million, as fnereases in passenger valumes ronained head of capaciiy inereases; this improvement has been nssisted
by discontimting the airling's lossmaking German domestic services ol the end of Qctober 1992,

Turnover originating i the Asericas daclined by 1.5 per cent to L9Z7 milfion, sltheugh tolal mover onthe Americas rowles increased by 3.9 per cent 1o
£1,709 million. Operating profit on the Americas rogles fell by 26.9 jer vt 10 LE7 miflkion, turioly doe to traffie deslin in the premium cabins and dowasvard
pressure on yields following increased competition ont key routes 1o the United Siates,

Tumover on Afeica, Middle Enst and Indian sub-continent routes fiicreased by 13.8 per cent 10 £757 million. Opurating profit otk those routes rose by
12,6 per cent 1 £138 million cellecting mprovement i both yields and volumes e the West Africa, Guiland Tndia routes,
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
QF THEYEAR (contnued)

Incveased reventie from Far East and Australasia routes has begn marginal, reflecting the difficult economic conditions by Japan snd Auitralin. Opersiing
profit for the region was £59 million for the year, a decline of31.4 per cont.

3
Atotal 0 28,100,000 passengers were cerried on seheduted and chiarter services, an increase of 10,5 per cent, Cargo tonne kilometres were up
. by .2 par cent, tepresenting the carriage of $32,000 tonnes of cargo. Revenue turne Kitorwelres inereased by 13.2 per cent sith available tonne kilometres
up by 11.6 per cent.
ﬂ Revenue passenget kilometses on scheduled services increased by 12,3 per cent with svailable seat Kilontetres up by 1.3 per cent giving

passenger load factor of 70.8 per cent, up by 0.6 points on the previous year,

IPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO
THE MEMBERS QF BRITISIE ATRWAYS Pie

We have audited the accounis on Pages 11 t0 38 in accordance with Audiling Standards,

In our opinion the accounts give a tnie and fair view ofthe state of affairs o ihe Company and ol the Group at 31 March 1923 ard of the peofit
#nd cash Mlaws of the Group for the year then ended and have been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London

17 May 1993

m
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it GROUF PROETT AND LOSSAALH T

., Tor e yesr endod 3§ Masch 1998
=,‘ E Gt
“' £milion Noie ) w2
3 B TURNOVER 2a 8564 5224
E K Continuing eperations PR S22
Acquisitions 57 '
) Cost of sales Ja (5138) (4777)
a v Groks profit L H7
N Administrative expenses 3a (118) (103)
OPERATING PROFIT e &ie 319 Jér
Continuing operations 8 34
Acquisitions {8)
Share of results of associated undertakings { (17
QOther income and charges 5 (16) 7)
Profit on sale of Mixed assets 1% 36
Profit on sale of engine overhaul business 149
. Net interest payable 6 (113) (53)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 188 434
. Taxation 7 m {39
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 178 95
Dividends 8 9 74)
< 'RETAINED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR u % 3n
EARNINGS PER SHARE 9
: Basic earnings per sharc 4.1p H.op
" Adjustment to exclude profit on sale of engine overhaui busincss (193)p
Adjusied eamings per share A4,1p 353p
Fulty diluted earnings per share 22.3p S64p
Adjustment to exclude profit on sale of engine overhau] business (154)p
Fully diluted adjusted cacnings per share 22.3p 31.0p
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE 8 10.60p 10.18p

* Restated in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 3, see Note 1,



v

BALANCE SHEETS

i 3] Narch 199)
Grovp {ampary
£ makon Nowe 2.0 T2 1) o2
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 1o \
Fleet 3,53 282 3511 2804 3
Property 464 420 ASS 415
Equipment 219 223 2K4 20
4230 3472 4,181 3425
Investments 1
Subsidiary undertokings 663 136
Associated undenakings 448 ? 1 3
Trade investments 98 84 22 X0
546 93 701 l6!
|
CURRENT ASSETS i
Stocks 16 40 3 3 k] |
Debtors 17 1,009 920 1,018 889 |
Short-tcrm loans and deposits 18 498 706 a3 650 |
Cash at bank and in hand 18 13 27 23 23 ‘
1,577 1,657 1,515 1,593
CREDITORS : amounts falling due
within one year HY (1,851) {1,706) (1,846) (5,717)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 233) (19) (331) (124}
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENY LIABILITIES 4,502 3,546 4,551 3,462 i
CREDITORS : amwounts falling due 1
after more than one year 20 (2,899) (1,888) (3,203) {2134)
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES 22 (69} () {9 (54)
553 1,604 1273 15,225 |
|
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ‘
Called up sharc capital 23 185 182 185 182
Reserves 24
Share premium account k1) 10 30 10
Revaluation reserve 45 60 40 A
Profit and loss account 954 1,032 1,024 979
1,214 1,284 1,279 225
CONVERTIBLE CAPITAL BONDS 2065 25 k¥ 1} 320
1,544 1,604 1,219 225

Sir Colin Marshall Chairman

Robert Ayling Group Managing Director
Derek Steves Chief Financial Officer
17 May 1592
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TROUE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
; For s pros endad 3 March 1#03
=
- £ miltion Nore 139} [
Py NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ib 622 5901
39 RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Inserest recelved 9 L
Interest paid on bank and other loans {116} )
~ Interest paid on finance leases and hire purchase amangements (&3} (53}
5 USAir preferved stock dividend received 3
Dividends received from trade investments 4 !
o Dividends paid (76) {65}
Net cash outflow from retums on investments and servicing of finance {169) {165)
: Taxation
UK corporation tax pold 38) (1)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
X Tengible fived assets purchased for cash 10g 1 (53%)
Refund of progress payments 32 158
Burchase of interests in associated undertakings (532) (6}
u Loans made to associgied undentakings {42}
Purchase of interests in trade investments 4]
Net cash and cash eguivalents of Davies & Newman Holdings PLC assumed on acquisition 12 (10)
[+ ] Sale of angible ficed assets 103 X
E Sale of investments 2
Sale of engine overhaul bisiness 2M
{1,024) {24)
o Net cash (outflow)/inflow before decrease/(increase) In short-term deposits and financing (602} 396
s
Decrease/(increase) in short-teem deposits (maturity date at inception of more than three months) 3 (334)
Net cash outflow from investing activities saeny (358
- Net cash {outflow) finflow before financing ) 56
FINANCING
l Changes in borrowings ) 2re
Bank and other loans raised 735 300
Bank and other loans repaid (301} (215)
Capital elements of finance leases and hire purchase arrangentenis paid (19 (55)
358 120
Changes in share capital 23
Issue of ordinary share capital under Employee Share Option Schemes k] 2
oy Share premium received 20 9
B X1 11
Net cash inflow from finaacing 378 31
E Increase in cash and cash equivaleats 184 110 187

GROUP FINANCING REQUIREMENT

Net cash outflow/(inflow) before (decrease)/increase in short-lerm deposits and financing 602 (39%0)
Acquisitions under finance leases and hire purchase arrangements 513 362
q
u Total financing requirement for the year 1,115 ¢28)
L
FUNDED BY:
Decreasef(increase) in short-term deposits (maturity date al inception of more than three months) Rk {334
New finance leases taken out and hire purchase arrangements made 513 362
Net cash irflow from financing 37 131
Inceease in ¢ash and cash equivalents (110 (287)
1,115 8

Page 13




a

)

“u
i

STATEMENT OFTOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LGSSES

For the pear erded 1 Murch (01
Geonp

£ mitkon ) i}
Profit for the year 7 395
Exchange mavements (2%) )
Total recognised gains and losses in the year 150 N
Adjustment 10 opening balance relating to post-reticement medical benefits {1%)

Totzl gains and losses recognised since 31 March 1992 138 IN
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Foe the pear ended 3¢ March 1993

Grovp

Lenittion Nore 1993 1997
Retained profit for the year 99 32
Exchange movements (28) 1)
Issue of ordinary share capital under Employee Share Option Schemes 23

Share capital k] 2
Share preentium 20 9

23 )
Goodwill set off in the year 2Ma (149} 3}
Net {reductions)/additions to shareholders’ funds (55) 32
Shareholders’ funds at 1 April 1992 (as restated 1o account for post-retirement medical benefits) 1,269 958
Sharcholders’ funds at 31 March 1993 1214 1,284
The difference between reported and historical cost profits and losses is not matedal.
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NQTESTO THE: ACCOUNTS
Foe i poar endnd 3§ Sanch 994

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard 3 ‘Reporting Financial Performance® in 1993 and corresponding amounts lisve been
restated necordingly.  As a consequence, the profit on sale of the engine overbanl business in 1992 of £149 million (before 1ax) has been
reclassified as an exceptional item and is now included in profit before taxation. Profits and losses on sales of fixed asseis ure also now
classificd as exceptional items. The new standand requires a statement of recognised galns and losses, a reconcilistion of movements in
sharcholders’ funds and, if material, 4 note of historical cost profits and losses,

The Group has also adopted Urgent Issues Task Porce Abstract 6 *Accounting for Post.rztirement Benefits other than Pensions®, with
effect from 1 April 1992. Thz cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy on prior years has been dealt with as an adjustment to
resérves brought farward on that date. ‘The effect of the change on results for both 1992 and 1993 is insignificant,

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the inclusion of certain assets at valuation, as sfated
below, and In accordance with all applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985, As exploined in Note 25,
the Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 are shown after Capitat and Reserves in order to show a true and fair view,

BASIS QF CONSOLIDATION

The Group accounts include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings, each made up to 31 March, together with the
attribulab’s share of resulls and reserves of associated undertakings. The atiributable results of those companies acquired or disposed of
during the year are included for the periods of ewnership.

On the aoquisition of a business, including an equity interest in an associated undertaking, fair values are attributed to the Group's share
of net tangibie assets.  Where the cost of acquisition exceeds the values attributable to such net assels, tie resulting goodwill i set off
against reserves In the year of acquisition.

In accordance with section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account deafing with the resuits of the Company
only has not been presented.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
a} BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The Direetors regard al] Group activities as relating 1o the airline business.

b) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

§) Turnover by Destination
The analysis of turnover by destination is based on the following criteria:
Scheduled and non-scheduled services Tumover from domestic services within the United Kingdom is ansibuted to the United
Kingdom. Tumover from inbound and outbound scrvices between the United Kingdom and overseas poinis is attributed to the
geographical area in which the relevant overseas point lics.

Orther revenue Revenue from the sale of package holidays is attributed to the geographical area in which the holiday is taken
while revenue from sireraft maintenance and other miscellaneous services is attributed on the basis of where the customer resides.

i} Turnover by Origin
‘The analysis of tumover by origin is derived by allocating revenue to the arca in which the sale was made. Operating surplus resulting from
turncver gencrated in each geographical arca according to origin wf sale is nol disclosed as it is neither practical nor meaningful to allocate
the Grup's opcrating expenditure on this basis.

it} Geographical Anclysis of Net Assets
The major tevenue-carning assets of the Group are comprised of the aircraft fleet, all of which are registered in the United Kingdom.,
Since the Group's sircraft fleet is employed fexibly across its worldwide route network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such asscts
and related fiabilities to geographical segments.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
a) Tangible fixed asseis are stated at cost except for certain aircraft flects and propertics which are included at valvation. Depreciation
is caleulated to wrile off the cost or vajuation, less residual value, on the straight line basis,

b) FLEET

i) Cost or Valuation Owned [lects are stated at cost except for the majority of the ficets owned at 31 March 1988 which were
professionally valued on a marker valug basis as at that date and arc included in the accounts on the basis of that valuation with subsequent
expenditure stated at cost.  The Conconde Beet remains at pil book value.  Aireraft not in current use are included at estimate? net realisable
value,

Aircraft which are financed in whole or in part in forcign currency, either by feans, finance leases or hire purchase arrangements, are
regarded together with the related liabilitics as a scparate group of asscts and Habilitics and accounted for in foreign currency. The amounts
in foreign currency are translated into Steding at rates ruling at the balance sheet date and the net dilTerences acising from the transtation of
sheraft costs and related foreigs currency loans arc takes to reserves.  The cost of all other aireraft is fixed in Sterling at rates ruling at the
date of purchase.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

5 For v yor mded 31 March 1993

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (connnird)

Bl b)Y FLEET (ronviniat)

i) Capliatisation of Intzrest o Progress Payments Interest atiributed to progress paymeiits made on account of airceafl undes
coastruction is capitalised and added 10 the cost of the aircraft concemed.  Tnterest capiisiised in respecy of frogress payments on thoss
aircraft which subsequently become subject to extendible operating lease arrangements [z castied forwzrd and writlen off over the Injtial

lease petiod.

8 i) Depreciation Fleet agsets owned, or Leld on finance |eases and hite pucchase arrangements, are depreciated at fates caleulated
to write down the cost or valuation 1o the estimated residual value at the énd of the plansed operational fives. Residual values and
operational lives are reviewed annually,

¢) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
All properties, other than those of a specialiscd uie nature such as haugars and aircralt maintenance buildings, were professionally
valued at open market valve for existing vse or open market value at 31 March 1984 and arc included in these accourts on the basis of
- that valuation, with subsequent expenditure stated at cost, Specialized use properties are included ut cost.

= Provision is made for the depreciation of all property and equipment, apart [rom freehold land, based upon expected usefu) lives and,
in the care of leaschold properties, over the duration of the leases if shorter.

d) LEASED AND HIRE PURCHASED ASSETS
ﬂ Where aysets are financed through finance leases and hire purchase arrangements, under which substantially ail the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred to the Group, the assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright. ‘The amount included in
tangible [ixed assets represents the aggregate of the capital clemenis payable during the lease and hire purchase term, ‘The
correspanding obligation, reduced by the appropriate proportion of lease and hire purchase payments made, is included in ereditors,
The amount included in tangible fixed asscts is depreciated on the basis described in the preceding psragraphs and the interest efement
of lease and hire purchise payments made is included in interest payable in the profit and Toss account.

3 Payments under all other lease arrangements, known as operating lcases, are charged (o the profit and loss account in equal annusy
..!‘ amounts over the period of the lease.  [n respect of aircraft, operating lease arrangements allow the Group to tenninate the leases
after a limited period, normally every five to seven years, without further material financial obligations.

AIRCRAFT AND ENGINE OVERHAUL EXPENDITURE

Aircralt and engine spares acquired on the introdustion or cxpansion of & flect are carried as tangible fixed asscts and gencrably
deprecisted in line with the fleets to which they relate.  Replacement spares and all other costs relating to the maintenance 1nd
overhaul of aireraft and engines ars charged to the profit and foss account on consumption and as incurred respectively.
ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

N Where the Group participates in the resuls: of companics in which it has an cquity intcrest of 20 per cent or more, but not exceeding
50 per cent, and is in a position to exercise significant influence, those companics are classilied as associated undertakings.

The Group's share of the profits less lusses of associaled vndertakings is included in the Group prefit and Iass account and its

vy share of the post-acquisition results of these companies is included in interesis in associsted undertakings in the Group balance sheet,
i STOCKS AN WORK IN PROGRESS

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes cash In hand and deposits held with banks and other financial institutions which are repayable on demand, Cash equivafents
arc short-term investments with maturitics &t inception of less than three months.

PENSION AND OTHER FOST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Retirement benefits are payable through scparately funded United Kingdom pension schemes with equivalent arrangements for oversens
territories.  Coptribttions ta pension funds are made on the basis of indcpendens actuarial advice and charged (o the profit and loss
account 30 as 1o spread the cost over the remaining service lives of the employees.
Provision is made based on actuarial advice for post-retirement medical benefits of emplayees in the United States.
FREQUENT FLYER PROGRAMMES
"The estimated sdditional direct cost of providing free travel in cxchange for redemption of miles camed by members of the Group's
Executive Club and Frequent Traveller programmes is accrucd as members of these schemes accumulate mileage,
DEFERRED TAXATION
Provisions ere made for deferred taxation, using tite Hability method, oa shart-term timing differences and afi other material timing
dilferences Lo the extent that it is probable that the liabilities will crystallise in the foresecable future,
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
FLE Forcign currency balances are translated into Sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date, except for certain loan repayment
instalmenis which are translated at the forward contract rates where irstalments have been covered forward at the balance sheet
date, Changss in the Sterling value of outstanding foreign currency loans, finance feases snd hire purchase arrangements which finznce
fixed assets and of the related aircraft are taken to reserves.  Exchange differences arising on the trapslation of net assets of overseas
o subsidiary and associated undertakings are taken 10 reserves.  Prolils and losses of such undenakings are transiated into Stediag at average
rates of exchange during the year. All other profits or Josses arising on translation are dealt with thiough the profit and loss sccount.




2 ANALYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER, OPERATING PROFIT AND OFERATING NET ASSETS

L
£ milion 3 Fi. 14
i a GROUP TURNOVER
Traffic revenue
Scheduled services - passenger 4,533 4281
E - freight and mail 594 296
4,929 4677
Non-scheduled services 15 i
5082 4,758
Other revenus 434 436
E 5,566 5224
b GROGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER 8y aree of oviginal 43l ¥} ares of driinsicr:
i 1992 1 7
United Kingdom 2,885 2419 L ¥4) 538
Continental Eurape 1,008 o 1,615 1,528
Burope 3,593 3330 L8 3004
X ‘The Americas 927 w1 1,703 155
Alrica, Middle East and Indian sub-continent 466 434 757 ass
E Far East and Australasia 580 319 362 &50
5568 524 5,566 524
) ¢ GEQGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATING PROFIT
N 193 %t
Europt k) 20
The Americas 87 119
Alfrica, Middle East and Indian sub-contineat 4 e
Far East and Australosia 9 8
= 318 344

1t is impractical to separate United Kingdom an¢ Continental Europe opersiing paefiton a meaningful basis, since the day 1o day operations
are fully imegrated. ‘The operating profits for these services are therelore cuathined under the heading ‘Europe’.

g ¢ GROUP OPERATING NET ASSETS Group
9 1992
Net assets 1,54 2,604
g Add: net non-operating liabilities 2,042 1245
Qperating net assets 3,476 A8q9
Comprising:
Tangivie {ixed assels 4,130 3472
Stocks 40 34
_ Non-interest bearing debtors

Trade debtors 126 674
o Other dediars including amounts owed by associated sndenakings 10G &
Prepaymen: and acorued income 116 o
936 87

Non-interest bearing operating liabilities
Trade creditors (723} {660)
Other creditors inchiding amavints owed to associated inderiakings 7)) {55)
Ciher saxation and social sectirity 38) (28)
E Accruals and deferred incenie {836) {7613
(1,520} {2,514)

3,576 2849
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NOTES TQ THE ACCOUNTS
Foe wut prr oot H Manis §i0)
3 OPERATING PROFIT . Crop
£ milion 193 o
a ANALYSIS OF OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Bmplogiee costs 1551 1,506
Depreciation n 295
Aircraft oparating leass costs 24 2%
Puel apd ol costs 550 Axf)
Engineering and other sireralt costs 262 262
Landing fees and 215 route charges 497 43
Handling charges, eatering and other operating costs 1m4 608
Seliing costs ™ a2
Accommodation, ground equipment and currency differences 404 375
‘Tolal anerating expenditure 5,158 4589
Cont 0f sales 5138 4777
Admiristrative cxpenses 118 103
Total operating expenditure 5254 4,850
Cast of sales and sdministeative expenses for the year ended 31 March 1993 include L52 million and £2 million
respectively relating to 1he acquisition of the sasets and ligbilities of Davies & Newman Holdings PLC,
b RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFITTQ NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Group operating profit 310 34
Depreciation charges 32 5
Other items not involving the movement of cash )] 9
Increase in stocks and debtors (24) (149
Incnease in (ieditors is 92
Net cash inflow from operating activities 629 Syt
¢ OPERATING PROFIT IS ARRIVED AT AFTER CHARGING:
Depreciation of Group tangible fixed assets
Owned assets 215 24
Finance leased aircraft 41 H
Hire purchased aireraft 3 20
Other leasehold interests 20 20
n 295
Operating lease costs
Lease renials - aircraft 24 236
« property and eqiipnient 78 &9
Hire of equipment and charter of aircraft and crews 2 23
325 328
Auditors’ remuneration oot Low
Group auditors - audit fees 939 843
- other professiornal fees - Unired Kingdom 651 440
- oOwrseas 138 20
Other auditors - audit fees 7 7
- other professional fees 100
2,338 1418
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i 3 OPERATING PROFIT fusenes
¢ OPERATING PROFIT IS ARRIVED AT AFTER £HARGING, (nsnuedd

Ciroagp
i )
E 1 ¢
Directors’ emoluments  + fees 126416 L5003
5 - salary and benefits, including Company's pension coniribitiion 1,909,873 1,700,058
: - sharé apprecionion rights Mé04
- performance relfated bonus S69.783

LS 2444571

¢ DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS feveluding Company's pension contribuitions)
Chairmen and highest paid Director
™ Lord King - 15 § Pebruary 1993
Salary and benefits 380,795 449,350
Share approciation rights 97,935
Perfprrmnn.e related bonus 220,000
478,790 665,350

Sir Colin Marshall « from 5 February 1993 ({ull year: £540,916)

Salary and benefits 70274
Shkare appreciaiion rights 16,417
Performance related bonus
56,691
ﬁ 565,481 669,350
The Directors’ remuneration was within these sanges: Number Nuomiber
£10001-  £15000 2
£20001- £25,000 1
£25001-  £30,000
£3000% - £35,000 1
£3500 . £40,000 1
£40001- 45,000 1
i £45001«  £30,000 i I

b £85001- 190,006 I

£135,001 . £140,000 1 I
oD £250,00r - £255,000
?. £275,001 -  £280,000 1
280,001 - £285,000 b
£475001 - £480,000 1
£540001.  £545,000
R £585001-  £590,000 1
£665001 - £670,000 1
'3, Executive Directors’ emoluments (excluding pension contributions) congist of a basic salary and a performance related bonus, Salaries are
- reviewed annually by the Remuncration Commitiee which <onsists of non-exccutive Directars and is chaired by the non-cxecutive Deputy
Chairman. Performance retated bonwses are driven by corporate performance targets which are set annually by the Remuncration Committee,
$hare appreclation rights are sums paid following exercise of rights under the British Airways Share Appreciation Rights Plan 1991, under the
B rules of which up 1o 25 per cent of rights grantcd may be exereised afier onc ycar, up t0 5G per cent of the graat fter two years and the

belance after three years, terminating in May 199, The vzlue of the right, which is payable in cash, is the difference betwaca the market
share price when the right is exercised, with an upper limit of 210p per share, and 163p per share.

Lord King held 625855 share apprsciation sights ai the time of his retirement as Chairman and Director, which are exareisable under the
pran's rules in May 1993 and 1994,

g A Dircctor has waived fees of £17,500 for the year (19921 £15,000).
. Y
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HOTES TOTHE ACCOUNTS feomanaed)
Foe the pear encied T March (991

OPERATING PROMT {contued)
¢ EMPLOYEE NUMDERS AND COSTS Crowp sumber
it W7
The everage number of persons employed in the Group during the year was as follows:
Unlted Kingdom 41,233 43,74
Overseas (%34 a.685
2360 30409
Grog
£ mittion 97) w2
‘The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Wages and salarics 1,157 1,087
Employee bonus 35
Sxial security costs 105 164
Contributions to pension scheme (Nove 23) 52 62
1313 1,258
SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Altributable losses less profits (acquisitions: foss of £4 miliion) {20}
USAir preferred stock dividend  (Nove 137 3
{17
OTHER INCOME AND CHARGES
Income from trade investments 4 2
Provision against aircraflt not in current use  (Nove 1on {4) (8
Amounts written off investments (12) (8}
Other {4 7
(16) 7
NET INTEREST PAYABLE
Interest payable
On bank loans
Repayable wkolly within five years 5 1
Rerayable in whole or in part after five years 1 15
On finance leases
Repayable wholly within ffve years 3 26
Repayabie in whole or in part afier five years 30 5
On hire purchase arrangements
Repayable in whole or in part after five years 40 30
On other loans
Repayable wholly within five years 27 ¢
Repayable in whole or in part after five years - including inverest af £3} million
(1992: £31 million) on Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 53 78
14 161
Interest capitalised (8 {17)
Interest receivable (83} {57)
” &7
Currency losses on revaluation of general purposs loans at year end 14 ]
1 &3

‘The average rete of interest on loans, excluding linance leases and hire purchase arrangements, was 6.9 per cent (1992: 7.7 per cent). In
respect of all loans, including finance leass and hire purchase arrangements repayable in whole or in part after five years, the final repayment

date is Apsit 2010, The interest rates range from 3.6 per cent 10 113 per cent (1992: 4.7 per conr 10 14.5 per cent).
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7T TANATION {ror st Nove ) Grop
£ midhim ) 09
British Alrways Plc and subgidiary undentakings
Unired Kingdom: corporanon rax ot 33 per cent (1992 33 peu cent) L +7
) Prior year adjustmens n {19)
Ovenseas 1 2
] Jo
. Share of taxation in associated undertakings (4]
# 7 39

The 1992 corporation tax charge of £47 million included £9 million in respect of the sale
of the engine overhaul business and £9 million in respect of the sale of other fixed asscts,

It full ?rovision for defcrred taxation had been made, there would have been an additional charge for the

year of £14 million (1992: £74 million), comprising:

Accewcnated capital allowances . 1% 45
ﬁ Other timing differences (%) >
™ M
E 8 DIVIDENDS Group and Comace
1) =)
Interim dividend of 3.06p per share (1992: 2.94p per share) n k)

Second Interim dividend of 7.54p per share, in Jiew of final dividend (1992: nil) 5
Final dividend of 7.24p per share for the year ended 31 March 1992 52

E 79 o

Following chznges to advance corporation tax announced in the Budget on 16 March 1993, the Board declared a second inlerim dividend
‘on 31 March 1993 which was paid on 5 April 1993, The Board does not intend to propose a final dividend,

9 BARNINGS PER SHARE Grouy

Proft Ecmings pir share

o 1993 199 1953 )

= Profit and basic earnings per share for the year £178m £395m U.tp 516
Adjusiment 10 exclude profit on sale of engine overhaul business £(140)m {19.3,

Adjusted profit and earnings per share for the year E178m £255m WU1p s3p

Fully diluted eamnings par share 22.3p 154

Adjustment to exclude profit on sale of engine overliau! business (I54)p

Fully diluted adjusted eamings per share 223p 3lop

Basic and adjusted eatnings per share are calculated on a weighted average of 738,431,000 ordinary shares (1992: 722,501,000). Fully dilutcd
and fully diluted adjusted earnings per share are calculated on a weighted average of 907,681,000 ordinary shares (1992 908,040,000) alter
allowing for the conversion rights attaching 1o the Convertible Capital Bonds and for outstanding share options and for corresponding
adjustments to income to eliminate interest payable on the Convertible Capital Bonds and to include notional interest receivable on the

& subscription cash for shares.
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NOTES TOTHE ACCOUNTS  (comanues)

E For #he pour cxdid J1 March 193
10 TANGIBLE ASSETS Towd
£ million Note Floer Propery Egiunpawnt )l A0
W  » GROUP
. COST OR VALUATION 10
Dalance 1 April 449 N 554 5640, s
Exctiangs adjustments 129 129 i
Additions N2 63 0 1,015 1o 74
Disposals (151) (1) (192) (334)
Reclassifieation of capitatised interest 9
Refund of progress payments (32} (32} (158)
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 5384 655 613 8452 560
H DEPRECIATION
Batance 1 Apait 1,667 1n k)| 2,170 2049
Exchange adjustments 7 7 4
Charge [or the year 231 i9 62 i 203
Provision against aireralt not in current use 5 4 4 &
Disposals (62) ) (71 (185)
Reclassification of capitaliscd interest (1}
ﬂ BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 1847 191 384 4R 217
NET EOOK AMOUNTS
31 March 1993 3537 364 29 4230
31 March 1992 2829 420 223 i
UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
Assets in current use
; Owned 1,787 M7 176 2310 2087
Finance leased 590 6 596 37
B lire purchase arrangements 875 8718 695
‘e Progress payments 224 n? 47 3ss 313
Assets not in current use 61 61 &
3537 964 229 4230 7
i THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPRISES:
\ Frechold 118 108
Long lcaschotd 22 2
. Short feaschold 324 289
- 464 120
Net Book smount
Valuation feut Deprecuztion 19 199}
| Revalued flect and properties are inciuded in the accounts at the following amounts:
‘ - Flect - 1938 valuation 987 775 212 24
: - subsequent additions at cost 55 18 LY} »
| Property - 1984 valuation 3 2 1 M
| B - sithsequent additlons ai cost a1 2 59 48
|
Total - 31 March 1993 1156 827 ay
i E Total - 31 March 1992 110! < 766 315
: If these assets had not been revalued they would have been included at the
following amounts:
B 31 March 1993 n 76 246
£ 31 March 1992 s 673 238
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10 TANGIBLE ASSETS  (cominund) Tosal
£ mithon Note Fuent fropeny Equponerd ) £
b COMPANY
COST OR VALUATION 16c
» Balance 1 April 4,406 3.7 hr] 5,508 4864
§ Exchange adjustments 126 124 7
: Additions 944 60 & 1,858 99
Disposals (149) (8) (151 (313
s Transfers (10)/lrom subsidiary undentakings n 1) 208
- Reclassification of capitalised interest *
Refund of progress payments (32) 32 (153)
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 5284 842 576 €501 5508
DEPRECIATION
Balance 1 April 1,601 167 s 2,083 1,87¢
S Exchange adjustments 5 5
Charge for the year 225 19 55 Fas 29
Provigion against aircralt not in turrent use 4 5 L
Disposals (62) N (69) (183)
Translers (10)/from subsidiary underiakings (1) {n 108
Reclassifiestion of capltalised interest ()
a BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 1,713 1856 362 2321 201
NET BQOK AMOUNTS
3l March 1993 s 456 214 4,181
E 31 March 1992 2804 415 208 3425
UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
] Assets in current use
Owned 1,761 339 165 2,265 2,018
i Finance leased 5% 2 7] i
Hire purchase arrangements 8 875 95
R Progress payments 24 17 47 388 3
‘ Assets not in current use 61 6l 7]
| 3sn 456 214 4,181 3425
i THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPRISES:
Freehotd 114 107
i Long leaschold ] 2
. E Short feasehold 320 2%
| 45 115
i Net book amourt
. Viehuardon feoet Depreciation 1993 102
' Revalucd flect and properties are included in the accounts at the foliowing amounts:
. Fleet - 1988 valuation 897 707 190 42
; - subscquent addivions ot cost 50 16 M 17
. Property « 1934 valuation 2 21 1 13
' - subseguent additions at cost 7 it (23 67
a Total - 31 March 1993 1,056 755 n
Total - 31 March 1992 1,003 oM Jop
If these assets had not been revatued they would have been included at the
& following amounts:
31 March 1993 893 668 27
3I March 1992 836 619 27

- F
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NOTES TO THEACCOUNTS  (cumunued)
For che your enndad Jt March [993

10 TANGIBLE ASSETS  (cominue)

¢ COST OR VALUATION
Owned flects of Bocing T37-200s, Bozing 747-100s and certain Docing 747-2006 are stated a1 31 March 1988 valustics, having regard to &
market vatuation by Avmark International Ltd, with subsequent additions at cost,  Aircraft surplus to requircments are stated 2t estimated
realisable value.

Ali propertics, other than specialised use propertics, were valued at open market value for existing use or open market valuc at 31 March
1984 by Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, and are included at this value, with subsequent additions at codt.
All other aircraft ficets, specialised use propertics and cquipment are stated al cost less depreciation.
d DEPRECIATION
Fleets are generally depreclated over periods ranging from 14 to 20 years after making sllowance for residual valuss. Property, apart from

frechold land, is depreciated over expected usceful life subject to s maximum of 50 years, Equipment is depreciated over periods mnging
from three to 20 years, according to the type of equipment,

¢ CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS Growp Compare
£ mitions o 199

Capital expenditure authotised but not pravided [or in the accounts emourits to!
Authorised and conmracted 5095 5005
Authorised but not contracied 565 6!

5969 5,660 5967 5456

Of the outstanding commitments, £649 million relates to the acquisition of the flcets of Bocing 767-300 and Boeing 737-400 aircraft.
British Airways has arrangements through a facility provided by a syndicate of banks for it to acquire a proportion of these dircreft ona
number of alternative bases. The balance of commitments includes £4,988 million which relates to the acquisition of Boeing 747400 and
Boeing 777 aircraft scheduled for delivery during the next ten years. It is intended that these aitcrudt will be financed partially by internal
cash flow and partially through external financing, including committed facilitics arranged prior 10 delivery (scc also Note 20).

The Group's holdings of cash and short-term loans and depcsits, together with commilted funding facilitics, are sufficient to cover the full
cost of all firm aircralt deliveries due in the next two years,

[ FORWARD TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group had the following forward purchase contracts outstanding
Maturing within one year

=10 cover payments in US Dollars

- 10 cover payments in other currencies (Sterling equivalents)
Maturing after one year

- to cover payments in US Dollars

These forward purchase sontracts have been eatered into substantially for future capital commitments,

g ANALYSIS OF GROUP TANGIBLE ASSET ADDITIONS
£ mithon Fropenty
n
2

Cash paid

Acquisitions under finance leases and hirc purchase arrangements
Refated to assels acquired from Divies & Newman Holcings PLC
Capitalised interest

Accrual movements
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10 TANGIDLE ASSETS  (eowimumf)
h QPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS Croup Coompany

£ pullion i Foy 1" FiH

The aggregute payments, for which there are commitnients under
operaling leases as at the end of the year, fall due as follows:

) i) FLEET
i Within one year 243 a2 225 2n
Between one and five years 413 497 47 497
i Over five years " 9
678 72 581 0
Amounts payable wilhin one year relate to commitments expiring as follows:
E Within one year 1 27 1 7
Between one and five years 235 205 217 205
Over five years 11 1
248 2» 223 22
i} PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Within one year 67 7 o4 35
Benveen one and five years 145 133 139 128
Over five years, ranging up to the year 2075 si3 373 501 369
! S 563 704 552
Amounts payable within cae year relate to commitments expiring as follows:
Within one yeer 18 15 13 15
Beoween one and five years 17 12 L 1o
Over five years 2 30 n 30
67 57 64 55
ﬂ The fleet leasing commitments of the Company include the balanee of rental obligations under operating leases in sespect of 13 Boeing

7474005, three Boting 747-2005, 1t Boeing 767-300s, four Boeing 7575, 20 Bocing 737-200s, four Boeing 7374005, two DC-10-30s and 13
BAe ATP nircraft. In the case of most of these obligations, the Company may be required to meet a small share of any loss on resale if options
to extend the fease arc ot exercised. The fleet [easing commitments of the Group atso intlude two Boeing 7575, three Boeing 737-300s and
ten Bocing 737-400s.

Following an cxtension of the original lease period, one Boeing 757 and three Bocing 747-200s were converted from operating leases to
& finance leases during the year ended 31 March 1993 and the commitments for these [enses are now incinded under (inance Jeases and hire
rall purchasc arrangements in note 21,

‘The principal amount of the total property and equipment commitments above relates 10 property leases.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS  frounint)

E For ha yiny outed 31 Narch 593

11 INVESTMENTS

a GROUP
w7 {} ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS . Frovisess Tt
\ -" £ miltion Equury Loans ar cot Suret Loond im w2
o Balance 1 Aprit 1992 7 7 15
X Exchange movements (15) (15
o 'fi"’ Additions 535 2 (1)) (11} 585 5
LI . Repayments (2}

Share of attributable resulis (19) %
Goodwill {Note Ma} (104) {104) (5)
Disposals @ @ (6
Reclassification 18 (2} 16

RS ﬂ Balance 31 March 1993 420 Iy ) (3) 448 7

Equity of £420 mition (1992 £7 miltion) comprises cost of sharcs, less goodwill set off on acquisition, of £451 million (1992: £18 million) less the
Group's share of post-acquisition tosses of £31 miltion (1992: £11 miltion).

if) TRADE INVESTMENTS Provirions Tk
Shares Lodns at cort Sharet Loans 3 1992

R Balance 1 April 1992 101 3 (16) (2) 8% 93
R PR Exchange mavements 10 10

- Additions 2 m 1 2 7

Batance 31 March 1993 1 5 an [t 98 &

TOTAL INVESTMENTS Anociued Trade

Listed 17

Unlisted 448 81

The listed investment is listed on the Londan Stock Exchange and jts matket value at 31 March 1993 was £16 million (1992: £17 million).

b COMPANY

i) SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS Provisiont Toval
Shares Lo 27 ot Shares Loany 173 1992
Balance 1 April 1992 91 56 (203) (8) 136 231

Exchange movemenis 12 12
Additions 396 266 (32) (62) 568 14
Repayments (8) “8) (109)
Balance 31 March 1993 699 2M4 (235) (70) 668 136

il) ASSCCIATED UNDERTAKINGS
Balance 1 April 1992 18 (13) 5 11
Additions 18 13 Q5) (5) 11 s
Tepayments 2)
Disposals 5) %) )
Balance 31 March 1993 k)| N 13 (28) (s) 11 5
iil) TRADE INVESTMENTS

Balance 1 April 1992 35 3 (16) @) 20 27
Additions 2 (4)] 1 2 /]
Balance 31 March 1993 35 5 {n (0 2 20

TOTAL INVESTMENTS Submdiary Associated

wndertakings deriakings
Listed 17
Unlisted 668 11 5

The listed investment is listed on the London Stock Exchange and its markes vatue a1 31 March 1993 was L15 million {1992: £17 willion).

Tne Group's principal investments are listed on Page 38,
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12 ACQUISITION OF THE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DAVIES & NEWMAN HOLDINGS PLC
% British Alrways acquired, for a nominsl consideration of £1, the asscts and liabilities of Davies & Newmun Holdings PLC (Dan-Air),
LS principally its subsidiasy undertaking British Aicways (Buropean Operations at Gatwick) Limited (formerly Dan-Alr Services Limited), with

effect frons 1 November 1992, The transaction was completed on 8 November 1992 and the net lisbilities have been consolidated from the
% effective dxte of acquisition,

‘The following tables set out the cost of acquisition, the fair value of the assets and Habilities acquired, including adjustments to align them with
British Alrways® accounting polities, and the resultant goodwill arising which has been set off against Group reserves,

’ £ migtion
¥ 5 COST OF ACQUISITION
Cash consideration (£1)
ﬁ Legal and professional costs 3
3
b ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ACQUIRED Accoumeing pokey
A changes and
Book value Jair value Reorgunisarion
- on poqulsit djustmencs ap Tosd
Fixed assets
Irangible and tangible assets 10 k)] 7
a Investments 2 2
12 (3) s
Curtent assets ! (4) ¥/
Cieditors: amounts falling due within one year (124) 5 {2) (128
Net current liabilitics (46) H £2) “n
"Total assets less current Habilities (M) @ (2) an
: Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 3) e))
Provisions for liabilitics and charges (2} 1 (4]
Net labilities acquired (3®) (1) {2) (42)

Inciuded in the net liabilitics of £39 million acquired are creditors of £35 million, principally in respect of the previous management's decision
to close down Dan-Air's charier operations.

Reorganisation expenses, after allowing for tax, include costs and provisions associated with reorganising Dan-Air’s airiine operations
following the acquisition. These expenses include costs associated with surplus resources, contract canceflations and bringing airerafy,
equipment and operations Lo British Ainvays’ standards.

¢ GOODWILL
Cast of acquisition 3
Net labilities acquired a
Goodwill sct off z2gainst reserves (Nove 24a) &5

d PRE-ACQUISITION RESULTS
The business of Dan-Alr Services Limited acquired by British Airways in November 1992 comprised 12 of the Dan-Air group's scheduled

iy routes, 1t is nol practical to determine the results of this reduced operation prior to 1 November 1992, '

¢ ANALYSIS OF THE NET QUTFLOW OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and in hand acquired ) .
Overdrafls and short-term loans issumed )

{9
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NOTES TQ THE ACCOUNIS  (consnued)
For ive yodr emded It Naxch 1991

13 ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN QANTAS AIRWAYS LIMITED
British Airways acquired, through a wholly.owned Australian subsidiary undertaking, 25 per cent of the equity share capital of Qantas

Afrwvays Limited (Qantzs), an intemational aifline with a network of Intercontinental and Asia-P=sific routes, from the Australisn
Govemnment on 10 March 1993, The consideration was A$665 million,

. The last published audited accounts of Qantas were for the year ended 30 June 1992, In September 1992, Qantas acquired the domestic

X carrier Australian Airlines Limited for a cash consideration of A$400 million. Tn February 1993, the Australian Government recapitalised
Qantas 10 the cxtent of AS1.35 billion which has been used principally to repay Government guaranteed Joans, Under the Australian

0 Government’s privaiisation plans, the remaining 75 per cent of the shares in Qantas is expected to be offersd to the zublic during the next

X 12 months, '

In view of the short period from the date of investment to the year end, the Group's share of profit in this period is not considered to be
materizl and no share of income has been accounted for,

The following tables set out the cost of acquisition, the fair valuc of the assets and liabilities acquired, including adjustments to align them
with British Airwvays* accounting policies, and the resultant goodwill arising which has been sct off against Group reserves.

£ milion

a COST OF INVESTMENT

Cash cansideration 304
Legal and professionat costs 4
08
b ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE Accoursing pokicy
Pro foma book vahut  changes and faie
o scquisision  walue adk Towad
. Fiied assets 3616 928 4,544
L. Current assels 59 (4) 2]
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year {938) (216) (1,20.9)
E Net current fiabilities (392) (220) (612)
Total assets less current fiabilities 3,224 08 3,932
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (2,056) (920) 2976)
Net assets at date of investment 1,168 (212) 5

The pro forma book value on acquisition comprises the reported net assets of Qantas at 30 June 1992 adjusted principally to reflect the
acquisition of Australian Airines and'the recapitalisidic .

The accounting policy changes and fair valu< adjustments mainly relate to the apitalisztion of aircraf} leases and the elimination of intangible
assets. The resultant fair vatues of the net assets may be Subject 10 further adjustment when the next audited financial information is available,

¢ GOODWILL
Cost of investment 308
Group share of net assets at date of investment (239
Coacdwill sct off against reserves (Hoe 24) &

4 SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

The 1ast published audited stutements of operations, for Qantas and Australian Airlines, prepared in accordance with Austratian generily
accepted accounting princples, for the year ended 30 June 1992, are summarised below:

Qantzs Australian Airlines

Al Im Al fm

Opirating revenues 4,035 1,732 1594 684

Interest payable (219) (%) (87) a0

Abnormal items 45 19 30 13
Profit/{ioss) before taxation 148 &4 (69) (30)

- Income tax (10) “) 20 9
ol Profit far the year 133 60 (49) @n

The Sterling cquivalents for the stalements of operations have been tradslated at the average rate of exchange for the year to 30 Junc 1992,
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14 ACQUISITION GF INTEREST IN TAT EUROPEAN ATRLINES S.A.

British Aloways nequired, {or £15 milllon, 49.2 per cent of the ordinary equity cepita) of TAT Guropean Alrines SA. (TAT) from TAT S.A,
and CIPRA S.A, with ¢ffect from 1 Sanuary 1993, The transaction was completed on 4 January 1993 snd the Group's share of resulis have
been inctuded from the effective date of sequisition, TAT is the largest independent French alrline and operates an cxtensive nstwork of

rig domestic and internations! routes.  British Alrways has an option 1o purchase the remaining 50.1 per cent of the share capital on or before

o 1April 1997.

The following lables set out the ¢ost of acquisition, the fair value of the asscts and liakititles acquired, including adjustments to align them with
Britlsh Adtways' accounting policies, and the resultant goodwill arising which has been set off against Group reserves,

w £ mill

: a COST OR INVESTMENT
Cash consideration 15

Legal and professional costs 3
13

b ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE Accouning potcy

Book vatie  changer and fair
on scqilricion  walue adpastene Toesd
E Fixed asscts 122 (18) 0
Current asscts 100 {26) 74
3 Crediiors: amounts falling due within one year {110 (2) {112)
3 Net current liabilities (10) {28) (38
Tolal assets less current Habilities 112 (46) &
Creditors: amounis falling due after more than one year (100) {108}
Net assets/(Jiabilities) at date of investment 12 (46) (34)

. K The accounting policy clianges and {air valuc adjustments mainly relate o the write-ofl of deferred expenditure and the elimination of intangible
| : assets, and to the sttribution of fair values to aircraft and related spares.

E ¢ GOODWILL
| Cost of investment 18
. Group share of net liabilities at date of investment 17
|
_ E Goodwill set off against reserves {Naie Ma) 3s
u*‘ d SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

. The audited statement of operations of TAT for the year ended 31 December 1992, prepared in wccordance with Prenzh generally
accepted accounting principles, is summarised below:

_, FFm Im
Opesating revenuc pd 220
i Net interest payable (109) (1

Lozs before 1axation (132) 14)

E Taxation @ @
Loss for the year (153) (16)

" The Sterling equivalents for the statement of operations bzve been translated at the average rate of exchange for the ysar to

b 31 December 1992,

o
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NOTESTO THE ACCOUNTS  foawine)
For ihe prar andesd ) Manh 1793

ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN USAir GROUP, INC,

On 21 January 1993, Dritish Aitways canounced that it bad agreed terms for 4 rew alliance between itselt and USAir Qeoup, Ine, (USAIn.
The first stage of 1ha transaction was completed on that date with the invesiment by British Afrways, through jts wholly-owned US subsidiary
vnde ptaking Britair Awquisition Corp Ine,, of LUSSIQ million In new convertible preferred stock of USAlr and the signing of a flight code
sharing agreement.  The Group also agreed in catly May 1993 to invest an additiona) US5100.7 million in convertiblc preferted stock of USAir
pussvant to the exercise of pre-emptive rights following the exersise of employee options and the public offering by USAIr of USSI31 milfion
(net) of cominor stock,  In zdditfon, the Group has options, aad in certaln cirrumstances ¢an be required, 1o isvest & further LSS0 million
over the aext five years through two additional purchases of prefeered stock i USAIL

On 15 March 1993 the U Depsriment of Transportation (DOT) issued an onder approving the code sharing agreement for the normat period
of one year and instituting a formal review of the investment agreement and its effects on the citizenship of USAIr under US restrictions os
foreign ownership of US ajrlines, The order stated that the DOT's revizw indicates that the Group's initial investment does not impair USAir's
citizenship, but invited furiher analysis and public comment, particulasly with respect 16 the second aad third stages of the transaction,

The prelerred stock in USAir held by the Group is convertible at the Group's option at any time on ot ufter 21 Jusisy 1997 into USAlr
common stock.  Until converted the Enitial US$300 million preferred stock is entitied to cumulative quarterdy cash dividends of seven per cent
perannum, On conversion to USAir common stock, it would, prior 1o USAirs recent Issue of further common stock, have represented 24.6
pee ceat of USAir's equity share capital on an undiluled basis and approximately 17 per cent on 8 fully dituted basis,

Undet the 1erms of the investment agreement, the Group has certaln pre-emptive rights to mainisin the size of its potential proportionate
interest in USAir's share capital in the event of cortain issues by USAir of additional shares of common stock, inctuding the conversion of
certain outstanding convertible preferred stock of USAir ard the exerciss of any employee stock options to acquire USAlr common stack,
To nraintaln its 24.6 pey cent interest in USAIT's equity share capital on an undiluted basis, the Grouip in cardy May exertised its pre-emptive
rights in connection with a public offering of USAir common stock and agreed 10 purchase shares of a new series of convertible preferred
stock for US$99.2 million. Tt also excreised its optioas in {ull in conncction with the issue of USAIr common stock on the exercise of certain
employee stock options and agreed to purchase a further new scrics of convertible preferred siock for USS1.S million, These sdditionai
series of conventible preferred stock are entitled 10 cumulative quarterly cash dividends of 0.5 pet cent over LIBOR.  If all existing USAir
preferred stock is converted and all existing employee options are excecised, the maintenance of the Group's potential proportionate interest
would involve the Group in substantial further invesiments. The Board will consider whether to make each such invesment at the relevant
time in the Jight of the then circumstances.

The investment agreement between British Airways and USAir is subject to the approval of 1he sharcholders of USAir st its annual general
mecting on 26 May 1995. Aller approval, the preferred stock in USAUr held by 1he Group will earry an estimated 21 per cent of the viting
interest in USAir. If the investment agreement between the Group and USAir were nol to be approved by USAir sharcholders, the
preferred stock already purchased by the Group would be required to be redeemed atits purchase price, together with eccrued dividends,
The preferred stock is redecmable at the option of USAir if the Group has not elected 10 proceed with the second purchase of preferred
stock by 21 Januaty 1996, or, in any cvent, on 21 Janvary 2008 if not previously converted,

The further USS450 million preferred stock in USAir which the Group may scquire in the future will have financial terms similar to thoss of
the preferred stock initially atquired by the Group. Assuming future acquisition and full conversion at the current coaversion prices, the
Group would hold 40,7 par cent of USAIr's equity share capital on 2a vpdiluted basis and 31.2 per cent on a fully diluted basis, The Group's
total voting interest in USAJr is limited 10 the maximum voling interest permitted under restriclions on aggregate foreign ownership of US
sirtines {currently 25 per cent).

Under the above arrangements, the Group's current interest in the results of USAdris limited to its fixed preferred dividend of seven per cent
and only such dividend has been Included in these accounts  (see Nore ).

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The audired statement of operations and balance sheet of USAIr (or the year ended 3 December 1992, prepared in accordance with US
generally accepted accounting principles, are summarised below:

i) Summarised statement of operations USstm £m

Operating revenues 6,686 380
Operating expenses {7023} (3993}

Operating loss (337 (1s2)
Net interest payable and other expenses (264) (156)

Loss before taxes and accounting change (601) (342)
Cumulative effect of change in method of accounting for post-retirement bengflits other
than pensions (et of tax benelit of USS118 million) (628) (357

Net loss 1,229 (699)
Preferred dividend requirements 52 @9

Net los applicable to common stockholders (1281) (728)

Summiapised consalidated balance sheet

Total asse?s, less current liabifitics 4,162 2,749
Lang-emm debs 2nd redeemable preferred stock (2,623) (1,733)
Deferred credits and other liabiiities (1495) (987)

Tota! stockholders’ equity 4 )

The Sterfing equivalents for the statement of operations have been translated at the average exchange rate for the year ended 31 December
1992; these for the balance sheet have been translated at the closing rate on that date,
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16 STOCKS Group Cocnpamt

£ miRion 12 [ 1} e
Raw materals, consumables &nd work In progress 46 Ll 38 31
The replacement cost of stocks Is considered to be not materially different from theiv
balance sheet vatucs.
17 DEBTORS
Trade deblors ri 674 706 &56
Amaunts owed by subsidiary undestakings 7% 2
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 14 3 1 s
Other debtors 86 82 50 .44
Defzrred taxation {Note 26) 4 3 4 3
Prepayments and accrued income 179 156 163 0
1,009 920 1,015 a9
Amounts due after more than dnc year included above are insignifivant,
18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Growp
Change in Changein
1993 the year 1992 he yuor 1991
a ANALYSIS OF BALANCES AS SHOWN
IN THE BALANCE SHEET
$hort-term 1oans and deposits 495 @i 706 So3 203
Less : bank and other deposits with a maturity date
at inception of more than three months (98) N4 vi2) (357} (55)
Cash equivalents Ry 103 24 46 <8
Cash at bank and in hand 33 6 27 5 22
Ove rdrafts - unsecured  (Nece 19) (1) 1 [es) 39 {41}

b ANALYSIS OF CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

Balance at 1 April
Net cash inflow before adjustments for the effect of cxchange rate changes
Effect of exchange ratc changes

Balance at 31 March




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (coviswnd)

Fov the paar gncdad 1| March 1993
19 CREDITORS : AMOUNTS FALLING DUEWITHIN ORE YEAR Gromp Conxpcony
£ mudlon Nore i3 ? ) ivsl
Loans, finance lenses and hire purchase arrangements A
= Bank and other loans 21 6 20 s
Finance leases 6 3 59 30
Hire purchase arrangenients 11 25 41 a5
' 125 6 120 60
Overdralls « unsecured 18 1 2 I
Trade creditors 723 654 657 418
B Amounts owed to subsidiary updertakings 145 101
Amounis owed to associnted undertakings 1 i
" Other creditors including taxation and socind security
I uther creditors 9N Hd 85 106
Corporate taxation 18 56 11 50
Other taxation and social security 30 28 30| z7
b 139 98 is 183
g Dividends payable 56 53 56 33
Accruvals and delerred income
N Sales in advance of carriage 685 633 658 603
Acernals and deferred income 121 100 83 98
806 23 M4l 701
; 1,851 1,706 1846 1717
20 CREDITORS : AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER
- MORE THAN ONE YEAR
= Loans, finance Jeases and hire purchase arrangements )
‘Bank and other loans 1,447 948 1,116 &34
Finance leases 2] 32 540 310
ﬂ Hire purchase arrangemenis 867 577 857 7
A Loans from subsidiary undertakings 640 607
1,855 1,837 3,163 2148
Trade creditors 6
Accruals and defecred income H 45 40 35
2,899 1,858 3,203 218

At 31 March 1993 British Airways had vnused overdralt and revolving credir facifities of approximately £50 miltion and an unused multiple

l option facility of £400 million. The multiple eption facility comprises a committed portion of £300 million and an uncommitted portion of £100
million, covering a five year period from Ociober 1988, and ailows for short-term revolving drawings in a number of ways, including by way

of Sterling scceptance eredits, issuance of Euro and Sterling commercial paper, uncommilted advances and {up to the £300 million

committed portion) standby loans. In addition, British Airways had uncommiticd money market lnes of £95 million and USS$45 miltion with &
H number of banks.

British Airways has also arrunged a separate 18 year secured aircraft financing facility for LS52 b'llion which allows for British Airways

to acquire certain new aircraft on a number of alternative bases, including under extendible operating Jeases. At 31 March 1993 the unused
facility was US$367 million. Under the terms of this facility, the inancing banks will have the right to call for sceurity from British Alrways in
the cvent that there ii a material adverse change in the financial condition of Dritish Airways or in other limited circumstances if the financing
banks are not adequately protected by the vaiue of the cquipment financed.
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21 LOANS, FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS

& TOTAL LOANS, FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE M'URCHASE ARRANGEMENTS Croup Compare
E £ vibon 1) poa2 1) P
Loans
Bank « Dewische Mark DM75m DM75m DM75all DM75m
- French Franc F¥ilam FF40in
- US Dollar US$98%m Uss39im USs9sim US3393m
= Sterling £i4im L103m £6m £38m
84 356 769 a7}
g Euro-sterling notes o0 300 300 300
Other « Dentsche Mark DMAm
- US Dolfar US$00m US$400m
» Sterling E6Tm £83m L67m {63m
i IH 298 67 &8
Loans from subsidiary undertakings  « US Dollar Us$i00m Uss+00m
- Seerling £375m L375m
A &0 &7
-4 Finance leases « Sterling 6 N7 599 3o
Hizre purchase arrangenients = Japanese Yen Y3I8,66m Y29,903m Y38,067m Y20,993m
E . US Dollar USSILO3Sm| | USs3a0m | |_USSLASSm] | USts2om
908 602 908 662
. 2,980 1,903 3,283 2208
Comprising:
' Bank loans _
Repayable wholly within five years 129 I 12¢
Repeyable in whole or in part after five years 105 355 &40 291
84 Js56 769 29t
Other loans, Finance leases and hive purchase arrangements
Repayable whally within five years 462 134 asr 17
= Repayable In whole or in pan after five years 1.684 1413 2,157 1, %0
i 2,146 1,547 3,514 1917
2,950 1,903 3243 2208

ﬂ Bank and other loans #re repayable up 1o the year 2011,
The bank Igans of USS#82 million include US3872 million secured on two Bocing 747-400s, two Boeing 767-300s and 15 Bocing 737-400s
{1992 US$393 mitlion sccured on two Bocing 747-400s and five Bocing 737-400s).

The bank loans of £141 million include £120 million sccured on one Bocing 737-400, one Boeing 767-300 and one Boeing M7-400 (1992: 182
million seeured on one Bocing 737400 and one Bocing 747-400). OF this amcuat, £56 million relates 1o the Company secured on one Bozing
737400 2nd one Boeing 767-300 (1992: £18 million secured on onc Boeing 737-100).

b INCIDENCE OF REPAYMENTS Hire purchase Group wxal
Bank fory Owher boxns Finnance beases anengements 1% 192
INSTALMENTS FALLING DUE:
Within onc year (Nore 19} 21 63 41 125 o5
Aflter more than onc year {Note 20)
Between one and two years 18 58 45 i1 75
Between two and five years 193 KF2] 187 163 867 37
In five years or more 602 310 208 659 1,867 1432
813 &M 27 867 2,855 L&37
‘Total 1993 83 634 604 908 2,980
! Total 1992 356 598 3H7 602 1,003
| Analysis of tota! 1993
| 5 British Airways Plc 769 37 599 %08 2,643 160
! Subsidiary undertakings 65 267 5 w 302
8M 6H 604 908 2,980 1903
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NOTESTO THE ACCOUNTS foomund)
B For e ywar ended 35 March [963

21 LOANS, FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS fconinung
¢ ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN BORROWINGS DURING THE YEAR Fraoe ketees and

Bank aat  Kive poackar Croup oos
+ £ milkiom oxher ot arvangenend 1 FLg
Balance at 1 April 934 N2 1,903 J&%
E Assumed from Davies & Newman Holdings PLC 4 1 1S
New loans raised s pAL] i
New finance lcascs and hire purchase arrangements raised 2 ;m 32
Repayment of amoutits bormowed (201) L)) (333) (270)
! Effect of exchange rate changes % 118 184 n
Balance at 3t March 1,468 1,512 2,980 1,90
22 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES Tranufers from
Batarce Priceyear  profis end lost Ocher I Fal
B 1 Aprit adfusmeen) AOORN movements applied 3 Mok
u.
- GROUP AND COMPANY
| Fensions and similar obligations 19 5 5 &) 4
' ' Post-retirement medical benefilts (Noee 28 15 15
Litigation provision {Noxe 20) 25 ) n
Other 16 2} s
E Total 1993 54 15 5 5 (10) o
Total 1992 55 b (9 3 s
23 SHARE CAPITAL Growp snd Compesy
! 1993 )
Authorised
1,068,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p each £47m £267m
Allguted, cailed up and fully paid
Issued share capital £185m Li82m
Ordinary shares of 25p each 741,886,161 727537204
. Share options
Number of ordinary shares of 25p each under option 32,308,107 47,452,702
Dates excrcisable 1993 -2002  1992- 2001
Price per share 1350 -276p I135p-22%
Number of Employee Share Scheme options exercised :
at 135p per share 651,897 778155
at 150p pershare 30,134 207807
at 161p pershare 11,670,086 561,908
" 5t 178p pershare 382,810 2,is5a31
s at 2G2p per share 41,270 a8
. at 204p per share 35,76
at 206p per share 552,996
I8 at 207p per share 289,855
at 230p per share 115,948 306,282
al 224 5p per share 94,033
e 14,248,937 616552
. Full conversion of the 9.75 per cent Convestible Capital Bonds 2005 will require the issuc of 131,775,864 ordinary shares,
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23 SHARE CAPITAL {Fonnnuad)

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL DURING THE YEAR Compayy
£ mikons Drare capuewl Share poenoum 1993 o
‘ At1Apnt 182 10 192 18
. Shares issucd under Bmployee Share Option Schemes 3 20 2} Al
l Al 31 March 185 k) s 02
4 24 RESERVES Share premium Revaliatiron Frofu and Toinl
;;j' ;reoun resene Jots gecount 143 e
3
a GROUP
2 Balance 1 April 10_ 60 1,032 1,102 78
& Adjustment to opening balance relating
- to post-retirement medical benelits {15) 15}
: Balance 1 Apnil restated 10 &0 1,017 1,087 778
Retained prafit for the year 99 % 32
; Transfers relating to revalued assets 15) 15
_ Exchange adjustments (28) (28) (1)
" Goodwill set off {149) (149} (5
5 Share premivm arising from issue of ardinary share capital
under Employee Share Option Schemes 20 pai] Y
Balance 31 March 30 45 954 1,029 1,102

Group profit and loss account includes cumulative retained losses of
£31 million (1992: £11 million) in respect of associated undertakings.

GOODWILL

Acquisition of assets and liabilities of

Davies & Newman Holdings PLC (Note 1) (45) 45)
Investment in Qantas  (Noe 27) [{3)] {69}
W Investment in TAT (Noie 1) (35) (3%5)

Investment in 49% of Deutsche BA Lultfahrigeselischaft mbid )
s Goodwill set off (149) (149) (5)

Cumulative goodwill set off against reserves at 31 March 1993
was £517 million (1992 : £368 million).

b COMPANY

Balance 1 Aprit 10 54 on 1,043 74
Adjustment to opening balance relaling

D 1o post-retirement medical benefits (15) {15)

3]

= Balance 1 April restated 10 54 964 1,028 74
Retained profit for the year 59 59 320
Transfers relating to revalued assets (14) L}
Exchange adjustments (13) (13)
Share %remium arising from issue of ordinaty share capital
under Employce Share Option Schemes 20 20 9
Balance at 31 March 30 40 Lo 1,04 4043

¥
=

P
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NOTESTO THE ACCQUNIS  eomsinsat)

For e pear ended 31 March 1991
25 CONVERTIDLE CAPITAL BONDS 2008 Towp
‘ £ il 1 i
n %

e The terms of the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital Bonds allow the holders to coavert Into British Alrways Ple ordinary shares during the

-4 1,"': period Junc 1993 1o 2005 on the basis of one ordinary shure for cach £2.43 of Bonds held, The terms also provide that on maturity in 2005 the
“ - Company may require remaining bondholders to convert their Bonds into ondinary shares of the Company which would be sold on their
behall, 1€ the proceeds of such sale are less than the Issue price of the Bonds the Company has to fund any deficit from its own resources.

1n these circumstances the Directors consider that it is highly probable that the proceeds af the lisue of the Coavertible Capita] Bonds will
become part of the Company’s called up share capital in due course and therefore wilt be available to the Group on a permanent basis,
Accordingly, in order to give a true and fals view, the normal balance sheet format specified by the Companies Act has been modified to

Include the Convertible Capital Bonds with Capital and Reserves rather than as Creditors: amounts [alling due after more than one year,
B ™ 26 DEFERRED TAXATION {see abvo Nove 7 and 17} Croup Cornpy
o 193 1992 1) w2
A A
oI Delerred taxation comprises:
' sa y .
e Accelerated capital allowances and other timing differcnces 12 12 n R
. Advance corporation tax 18 (17) as) 17
Timing differences in respect of propery valuations 2 2 2 2
(] (3 “ 3)

If Full provision for deferred taxation at 33 per cent {1992: 33 per cent) had been
made, the following amounts would have been required at 31 March:

Accelerated capital allowances, less unrclieved losses 51 3 st 1
Advance corporation tax (18) {17) (18) {17)
Other timing differences (C1)) (30) (39} {30)
Timing differences In respect of properdy valuations 2 2 2 2

464 398 462 3

27 DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LOANS AND TRANSACTIONS
No loans or credit transactions were outstanding with Directors or Officess of the Company at the end of the year which rsed tobe
disciosed in accordance with the reqitire ments of Schedule 6 to the Companies Act 1985, During the year the Company entered into
a contract, after tender, for a value of £2,916,569 with Wiltshier Reading Limited, asubsidiary undertaking of Wiltshier PLC of which
AM, Davies is the Chaimman,

28 PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFTTS
a PENSION COSTS
British Airways operates two defined benefit pension schemes in the UK: the Airways Pension Scheme (APS), which is closed to new
members, and the New Ajrways Pension Scheme (NAPS) of which all new permanent employees over the age of 18 employed by the
Company and certain subsidiary undertakings in the UK may become members. ‘The assets of these schemes are held in separzte
trustee-administered funds,

Benefits provided under APS are based on finel average pensionable pay and, for the majority of members, are subject to increases
in line with the Retail Price Index, Those provided under NAPS are bascd on final average pensionable pay reduced by an amount
equivalent to one and a half times the Government's lower eamings limit and are subject to Retail Price Index increases uptoa
maximum of five per cent in any onc year.

Most employees engaged outside the UK are covered by appropriale local arrangements.

Employees’ contributions range from 5.75 per cent to 85 percent of full pensionable pay in APS, and from 3.75 per cont 10 6.5 per cent
of full pensionable pay less one and a hall times the lower carmings limit in NAFPS.

The latest actuarial valuations of APS and NAPS were made as at 31 March 1992 by an independent firm of qualified actuaries, R*Watson &
Sons, using the attained age method for APS and the projected unit method for NAPS. These valuations showed that no further employers’
contributions were required in respect of APS while for NAPS an employers’ contributicn equal to an average of 2,00 times the employee's
contribution for the period 1 April 1992 to 31 March 1993 (249 times employee's contribution for 1991/92) was appropriate. The next
valuations of the two schemes will be carricd out as at 31 March 1995,
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28. PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFTTS  (ronanued)

8 PENSIONCOSTS  (condinued) Croag
E £ midtion ™ e}
All amounis recognised as costs were either funded or paid directly,
% Bmployers' contributions (caleulated as set out above for APS and NAPS) charged ia the sccounts were:
J Airways Pension Scheme
. New Airways Pension Scheme ] 52
Other pension schemes and pravident furds - mainly outside the United Kingdom 19 10
2 €

At the date of the actuatial valuation the market values of the asseis of APS and NAPS amounted to £2,825 million and £927 million
respectively. The valuc of the assets represented 112 per cent (APS) and 1U5 per cent (NAPS) of the value of the benefits that had
I acerued to members after allowing for assumed increases in eamnings, Tn the case of APS, the actuarial valuc of the assets together with
; future contributions from employces is sufficient to cover both past and future service lahilities. In the case of NAPS, the actusrial value
of the assels together with futurs conttibutions from employses was sufficient to cover past service liabilitics and tome future senvice
N Jiabilities and the employer’s contribution is intended to make up the balance of future service liabilities. The principal assumptions used
in the actuarial valuation were that, over the long term, the annual return on investments would be 2.5 per cent highey than the annual
Increase In camings and 4.5 per cent higher than annual increases in dividends. Annual pension increases, over the long lenn, were
assumed for APS to be at the same level as dividend increases and for NAPS at a fevel one per cent lower.

Employcrs’ contributions in respect of overseas employees have been determined in accordance with best lacal practice.

b POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFTIS
i Provision has been made in the accounts for post-retirement medical benefits payable in respect of certain current and former employees
in the United States. The obligation recognised at the beginning of the financial year, which had not been acocunted for in previous years,
amounted to £15 million and has been treated as a prior year adjustment.

The ongoing cost of providing post-retirement medical benefits, which in previous years was accounted for on & cash basis, has been

n assessed with the advice of qualificd actuarics and Is now spread on a basis similar to that used for defined benefit pension schemes,

29 LINGATION

a An acticn was brought on 20 March 1992 in the High Court of Justice against the Company by Mr. Richard Branson and Virgin Atlantic
M Airways Limited (Virgin) alleging that the Company had defamed Mr. Branson and Virgin. In a statement made in open court on 11

January 1993 the Company apologised to Mr. Branson and Virgin and agreed to pay £610,000 in damages plus lcgal costs to Mr. Branson and
Vitgin, Since the scttlement, Me. Branson and Virgin have stated that Virgin may commence further proceedings against the Company in
England and proccedings in the USA alleging that Virgin's business intcrests had been damaged by the conduct of Company employees and
H on 6 May 1993 Virgin issued a writ against the Company alleging breach of copyright and confidence obligations. Having regard to legal

advice received and in all the circumstances, the Directors are of the opinion that the outcome of the current and any other such proceedings
in respect of damags to Virgin will not in the aggregale have & significant cffect on the financial position of the Group.

Gy b There are a number of further identified legal and other ciaims which cmanate from intermational airline operations and other activities of the
N Group for which the Directors have made what they believe is appropriate provision,

¢ Expetience with litigation and regulation in the United States and elsewhere has led the Direclors to conclude that it is pradent to continue
. 10 carry forward £22 million of a provision made in prior years. The charge against the opening provision represents the costs associaled with
l the libel litigation with Ms, Branson and Virgin, the settiement of which was announced on 11 Janvary 1993,

30 CONTINGENCIES
R Contingent liabilities exist, for which no provision has been made in the accounts covering obligations of the Group including guarantees
given tobanks. For the Group these liabilities amount to £135 miltion (1992: £90 million) and for the Company £862 million (1992: £732
; million). The figure for the Company includes £747 million (1992: £615 million) in respect of Convertible Capital Bonds issued by a subsidiary
underteking and borrowings by subsidiary and associated undenakings.

31 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RATES

o 3} March Annul averege

1993 "9} 1992)v3 oy

US Dollar 151 LM 1.69 LM
Japanese Yen 173 231 213 232
Deutsche Mark 243 286 2.64 292
Australian Dollar a4 2.26 237 227
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PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS
Ap 3l Mook 199
SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Principal subsidlary undertakings are wholly-owned subsidiaries except where indicated, Covmary of bncorporasion
Snd Mpacwion
Prncipal acevitier and principal operaiow
Air Miles Travel Promotions Lid ¥ Alrline marketing Enghod
(31 per cent of ordinary shares owned}
Bedford Associates Ine Specialist computer reservation soltware USA
Britair Acquisition Corp Ine * Holding company Usa
British Alrways Associated Companies Lid * Airline management services Englnd
British Airways Australia (Holdings) Pty Ltd * Holding company Austnlia
British Airways Capital Lid * Airline finance Jersey
(89 per cent of founders® shares owned)
British Alrways (European Operations at Gatwick) Ltd * Airline operations England
British Airways Finance BV * Airline finance Netherlinds
British Alrways Holidays Ltd * Package holidays Englana
British Afrways Investments (Australia) Pry Ltd * Holding company Australie
British Airways Maintenance Cardiff Ltd * Aircralt maintenance England
British Alrways Regional Ltd * Air travel services England
British Asia Ajrways Lid * Air travel services England
Caledonian Airways Litd Airline operations England
Chartridge Centre Ltd * Airline travel training services England
Deutsche BA Holding Gmbl * Helding company Germany
Speedbird Insurance Co Ltd * Airtine insurance Bermuda
Travel Automation Services Lid * (trading as Galileo UK) Computer reservations systems England
ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS Concnryof
Perceniape innorponation
of equuty end principal
owned Pancipal acrivines opermtions
Air Russia * 310 Alirline operations Russia
Concorde International Travel Piy Lud 500 Travel services Australia
Deutsche BA Lultfahrigeselischalt mbH 49,0 Airline operations Germany
Euro-Hub (Birmingham) Lid * 214 Airport teminal services England
G B Airways (Holdings) Ltd 490 Airline operations Jersey
Qantas Airways Ltd 250 Alrline operations Australia
‘TAT European Airlines S.A. * 499 Airline operations France
The Galileo Company Ltd * 23.6 Computer reservations systems England
World Aviation Systems (Australiv) Pty Lid s00 Airline marketing Australia
USAir Group, Ine, {see Note 13) Aldine operations USA
TRADE INVESTMENTS Couentry of
Percentage incorparonon
o equity end principal
owned Principal activites eperationt
Covia Partnership 1.0 Computer reservations systems USA
Hogg Robinson ple * 124 Travel services England
Ruby Aircrait Leasing and Trading Lud * 193 Aireraft leasing England
Sapphire Alrcraft Leasing and Trading Lid * 193 Ajreraft Jeasing England
The Plimsoll Line Ltd * =* 499 Alirline holding company England
{Holding company of (equivalent to 14 per cent of voting rights}
Brymon Aviation Lid and

Birmingham European Airwvays Lid)

* Owned direstly by British Airways Ple

** On 11 May 1993, British Airways and Maersk Air Limited entered into a conditional contract to de-merge the Brymon and BEA
business from The Flimsolt Line (1TL), Maersk Alr Limited wilt purchase all the shares of BEA from TPL and British Airways will
purchase the shares in TI'L that it does not already own and thereby acquir.: 100 per cent control of Brymon.
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UNITTD STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (US GAAPR) INFORMATION

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles gererally accepied in the United Kingdom which
differ in certain respects from those generally accepied in the United States. The significa. | differencer are deseribed below,

a Deferred taxation British Ainways provides for deferred taxation using the liability method an all material timing differences 1o the
extent that it is probable that the liabitities will crystallise In the foresceable future, Under US GAAP, as 2ct oul in Statement of Financiat
Accounting Standards (BAS) No. 96 *Accounting for Income Taxcs', deferred taxation is generally provided on a full liability basis.

b Goodwill  Brilish Afrways scis off goodwill arising on consolidation directly against retained eamnings, Under US QAAP, goodwilt
arising an consolidation is smortised over its useful life. Por the purposes of detennining the differences between UK GAAP ard
US GAAP, the expected useful life of goodwill has been taken to be 40 years.

¢ Property and fleet vailuation Under US GAAP, tangible asscts must be stated at cost Jess accumulated depreciation in the
financial statements. The valuation of propertics at 31 March 1984 and {leet a1 31 March 1988 incorporated by British Airways in jts
financial statements would not therelore have been Included in finazcial statements prepared in sccordance ~vith US GAAP and the
subscquent charges for depreciation would have been correspandingly lower, When such assets are sold, however, any revaluation
surplus thus realised would be reflected in income.

d Purchase accounting  Under US GAAP, as sct out {n FAS 96, a deferred tax Hability is recognised for the tax effects of differences
between the assipned fair values and tax beses of assets acquired, whereas, under UK GAAP, no such lisbiiity is recognised.  As a result
of recognising such a deferred tax Hability the amount of goodwill arising on consolidation increases oorrespondingly, Under US GAAP,
the deferred tax linbility would be amortised over the same period as the assels to which it selates,

¢ Forward exchange contracts Under US GAAP, the notional gain or loss arising on the translation of certaix sutstanding foreign
currency forward exchange contracts at each balance shect date, at the forward rates of exchange ruling at that date, would have been
included in the determination of net income. British Airways does not take account of such notional gains and losses.

{ Dividends  Under UK GAAP, dividends are recorded in 3ix financial statements for the period to which the dividend relates. Under
US GAAP, the liability for dividends is recorded in the financial statements when declared, The proposed ffnal dividend at 31 March 1992,
and the related advance corporation tax, would not therefore have been included in the financial statements for 1992 prepared in
accordance with US GAAP.

g Foreign currency translation Aircralt which are financed in whole or in part in foreign currency, cither by loans, finance lease
obligations or hire purchase arrangements, are regarded together with the related liabilitics as a scparate group of assels and liabilities and
accounted for in foreign currency. The amounts in foreign currency are translated into Sterling at rates ruling at the balance cheet date and
the net differences arising from the translation of aircraft costs and related foreign currency loans arc taken te retained carmnings. Under US
GAAP, the cost of these aircraft would be fixed in pounds sterding at the rate of exchange mling at the date of the original acquisition, lexsc or
hire purchase and the exchange gain or 1oss on the related foreign currency loans would be reflected in income,

h Gains on sale and leaseback mansactions Under UK GAAP, gains arising on sale and leascback transactions are recognised
as part of income to the extent that the sale procceds do not exceed the fair value of the assets concerned. Gains arising on the portion of
the salc proceeds which exceed the fair vatue arc deferred and amontised over the minimum lease term. Under US GAAP, the total gains,
including any realised revaluation gains, would be defecred in full and amortised over the minimum lease term.

i Post-retirernent medical benefit obligarions With effect from 1 April 1992 British Airways has accounted for its obligations in
respect of post-retirement medical benefits in aceordance with UK Urgent Issues Task Force Abstract 6, which accords with FAS 106
‘Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions®.  Under UK GAAP, the cumulative effect of this change at that
date has been dealt with as an adjustment to opening retained carnings at 1 Aprit 1992, Under US GAAP, this adjustment would have been
dealt with as a cumulative effect of change in method of accounting in the determination of net income for the year ended 31 March 1993.

j Post-employment benefit obligarions  British Airways has no significant lizbilitics in respect of post-employment benefit obligations as of
31 March 1993, as defined by FAS 112 ‘Employers’ Accounting for Post-smployment Benelits®,

k Pension costs Under US GAAP, the cost of providing pensions is atiributed to psriods of service in accordance with the benefit formulae
underlying the pension plans. The resultant projected benefit obligation is matched against the current value of the underlying plan assets and
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses in determining the pension cost or credit [or the year. The net periodic pension costs for these plans
for the year ended 31 March 1993 amounted 10 £42 million (1992 £52 miltion) under UK GAAP compared with an estimated cost of £114
rrillicn (1592: £113 million) under FAS 87 ‘Employers’ Accounting for Pensions’. The resultant Increase in operating costs of £72 million
(1992; £61 iillion), net of rclated deferred tax of £24 million (1992: £20 million), would reduce net income under US GAAP by £48 million
(1992: £41 million), and would be reflected in the consolidated batance theet &5 an sddition to accrued pension costs.

1 Gain on saie of enginz overhaul business The gain on sale of the engine overhaul business in the year ended 31 March 1992
would have been dealt with as a galn on sale of a discontinued operation under US GAAD.

The estimated effect of the significant adjustnents o net income and to shareholders® equity which would be required if US GAAP
were t0 be applicd instead of UK GAAP are summarised on Pages 40 and 41,
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NET INCOME UNDER US GAAP

For the year eraicd 3t Manch (903
Do
T im? L) R
. tn om L) o
Profit for the yzar ag reported in the Group profit and Joss accaunt 178 298 244 &37
Estimated adjustiments:
Depreciation
Goodwilt (10) 17] (15 (15)
Fleet 3! » 4 %
Property 1 ) 2 2
Pension costs 7)) (61} (102) {106)
Exchange gains/{losses)
Ariving on translation of alrcraft related loans (139 {6} {200 (10}
Relating to revaluartion of forward exchange contracis 3 (1) 5 (2
Surplus on disposal of tangible fixed assets and investments
Arising on disposal of revalued aircraft ) 2 3 3
Arising on sale and leascback wansactions ) (3) 3 (5)
Deferred taxation (62) (63) (M} (1)
(238) (111} (359 (193}
Estimated net (loss)fincome before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle as adjusted to Jzcord with US GAAP (60) 284 (30) e
Estimated cumulative effect on prior years of adopting FAS 106 (13 (23)
Estimated net (loss)/fincome as adjusted to accord with US GAAP (75) 28 (113) 94
Arising [rom 3 -
‘Continving operations
{Loss)/income before cunulative effect of change in accounting principle (60} M4 {90} 251
Cumulative effect on prior years of adopting FAS 106 (15) 23
(15) 14 (11y) 257
Discontiziucd operations
Guain on sale of engine overhaul business 140 243
75 28 {113) “©4
Feace Pence Cents Centy
Net (Joss)/income per Ordinary Share as so adjusted :
Primary
Continuing operations
(Loss)fincome before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (82) 200 (124) 348
Cumularive effect on prior years of adopting FAS 106 2.0) .0
(10.2) 200 (154) 348
Discontinued operations
Gain cn sale of engine overhaul business 19.3 336
(10.2) 393 (154) 684
Fully diluted
Continuing operations
(Loss) fincome before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 3.9 188 (59) 327
Cumulative effect on prior years of adopting FAS 106 1§ )] (2.6)
(5.6) 138 (8.5) 327
Discontinued operations
Gain on sale of engine overhaul business 154 268
(5.6 342 (8.5) 3.5
Trenslanon rase £1 = §1.51 £ =31
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NET INCOME UNDER US GAAP  tromnsice)

Grovp
1) iy sy w2
Fonin Pence Cnts Ceras
Net (loss)/income per American Depesitary Share as so adjusted
Primary
Continuing operations
{Loss)/income before cunulative effect of change in accounting pririciple (82) 200 (129 kL
Clinuilarive effect on prior pears of adopting FAS 106 20} (38}
(10 200 (154) 32
Discontinued operatioas
Gain on sale of engine overhau! business ¥ Jik
(102) 393 (154) a8
Fully diluted
Continuing operations
(Loss)/income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 9 188 (5%) 327
Cumnularive effect on prior years of adopting Fa5 106 17) (26)
(56) 188 (85) 327
Discontinued operations
Gain on sale of engine overhaul business i 268
(56) 342 (85) 395
Transionon mte £1 = 5151 4= 3174
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY UNDER US GAAP
A1 31 Narch 1991
Grovp
1m 199} 199} 992
(] [ $m Im
Shareholders’ equity as reparted in the consolidated balance sheets 1,24 1,384 1,833 2234
Estimated adjustments:
Intangible assets
Goodwill <4 335 716 383
Tangible assets
Fleet (20 {127} (332) {220)
Propery an (1 an (21)
Current assels
Pension cost prepaynients 65 HL)
Deferred gains on forward evchznge conracis 3 5
Current fiabilities
FProposed dividend 33 92
Fension coss aceruals )] {11}
Deferred income - sale and leaseback (22) {19) [K33) (33}
Long-term liabilities
Deferred incorie - sale and leaseback (3%) (+) (5% (77)
Provisions for linbilities and charges
Deferred taxation (408) {3H4d) (616} (602)
{230) 195) (347 {165)
Estimated sharcholders’ equity as adjusied to accord with US GAAP 984 1159 1,486 2009
Transkane rare K1 = 5131 £ - St

Page 41




FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES
Fior W flve yoara ereded 3T Nurch [99)

GROUP PROFTT AND LLOSS ACCOUNT

189 1o 199) 299} ) ) 3
' o n £m tn ™ n [ ’
" TURNOVER 4,257 4838 1937 52 5,566 9,000 8405
Operating expenditure {3,921) (4454) {4,390) {4,850} (5,256) {849]) (790
n OPERATING PROFIT 336 54 47 3N 310 299 453
Share of results of
assaciated undertakings (13 {17} 6 " (26)
Other income and charges i (20) 6 n (16) (12) (el
Profit on sale of fixed asssis I 45 190 J6 19 62 29
Profit on sale of engine overhaul business 149 239
Net interest payable (70) (57) (29) (53) (1) (153 (168)
E Profit before taxation 268 345 130 434 185 755 9
Taxation and minority interests (93) (99) (35} €39) 42 (68) {10)
g Profit for the finzncial year 175 246 95 395 178 637 269
Dividends (561 (64} (64} (%) a9 (229) s
‘Tletained profit for the year 1 82 3 32 9 558 15
Trnslction rase L5134 na=$18

Following the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard 3 in 1993, ansounts lor prior years have been adjusted accordingly.

GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER
AND OPERATING PROFIT

By arca of deninaion
£ miflion 199 1990 il 907 [C7)
TURNOVER

Europe 1622 1,835 1,950 2,064 2,238
The Americas L3N 1,619 1,615 L6435 1,109
Africa 323 356
Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-continent S99 665 757
) Middle East, Far East and Australasia 938 1,038
Far East and Australasia 782 &s0 861
E 4,257 4,838 4,937 5224 5,566
E OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Lurape 14 i {10) 20 30
The Americas 181 249 123 19 87
Africa 4% 52
5 Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-continent I3 119 134
. Middle East, Far East and Australasia %0 50
Far East and Australasia 41 85 59
l 334 284 167 = Ex A 30

In 1992, the Dircctors changed the analysis of geographical segments to bring them into tine with Brilish Alrways' operational management
structure and the figures for 1991 were adjusted accordingly.

o *In 1991, exceptional charges of £120 miltion {comprising costs associated wilh employee reductions of £93 million and the write down to
estimated reatisable value of TriStar aircraft surplus to requirenients of £27 mitlion) are not allocable by geographical region.
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GROUP PALANCE SHEET
£ midion e w0 1wt w2 3
Fixed assets
Tangible assews 2457 2464 3 I k¥r /] 4230
Tnvestments 111 108 108 93 s
2578 a5n 3242 3385 4,176
Current asseis 916 1,295 1,057 1087 15N
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (L748) {1,816) {1, 600) (1,706) (1,851)
Net current fisbitities {83 (521) {543} (79) {21)
“Toto) asseta Jess cutrent SHabilitjes 1,746 2081 2699 3,546 4,502
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year {8v6) {755) (1,366) (1,838) (2,899}
Provisions {or liabilities and charges {100} (64) (55j (54) {69)
750 1,232 ,278 1604 iy
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitul 150 150 180 182 185
Beserves 569 732 778 1102 1,029
Sharcholders' equity r A 942 958 L2284 1,214
Minority Interests I
7% 92 958 1,284 1214
Convertible capital bonds 2005 320 320 320 12y
750 1,232 1,278 1,604 1,534
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES  (comimn)
For e fiwt youss 1nded 2 blurch {92F

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

" £ millon iy ooy ! " L)
v Net cash inflow (rom operating activities 55 728 204 391 619
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Truterest received 16 2 a2 Y »
g Interest pald on bank and other loans {43) (59 (39} (%5} {116
Interest pald on finance lrases and hire purchase arrangenients (21 {22 33 (33 (80;
" USAir preferred stock dividend received 3
<, Dividends received from trade invesimenis 2 4 3 i 4
" Dividends peid (52 (59 (64} (65) )
MNet cash outflow [rom returns on invesiments and servicing
of finance (215} (136) {121) {164} (16%)
E Taxation
UK corporation tar pald (78} {4} (1) ({1/] (e, 1]
Investing acthvitics
E Tangible fived assets purchased for cash (638} {619) (813) (539) o
Refund of progress payments 43 268 189 158 i
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings () (5)
g Purchase of lnteresis in associated nnderiakings {8 (10 (10} () (532)
Loans made to associated underiakings (1) (3 “2)
Purchase of interests in trade investments 7l {7} (3) ()
e Net cash and cash equivalents of Davies & Newman
Holdings PLC assumed on acquisition 10
v Sale of tangible fixed assets 33 57 268 o) 9
Sale of irvestments 2
Sale of engine overhaul business 274
u Decreaseflincrease) in short-term: baiik deposits with a
maturity date at inception of more thar three months {334) k1T
Net cash outllow from investing activities (641} (213) (377) (358} {6%0)
Net cash {outBow)/infow before financing (286) 25 (311) 56 (268)
Financing
Changes in borrowings
Bank and other loans raised 434 74 346 390 NS
Bank and other loans repaid (188) (966) (395) 213 1)
Capital elereents of finance leases and hire purchase arrangements pai: (33} (48} (4%} (55} £19)
23 (350) 102 120 ass

Changes in share capitaj
Issue of ordinary skare capital under Employee Skare

5 Option Schemes 2 3
4 Share premium received 1 9 1
1 1 3
a Convertible Capital Bends issued 20
Costs associated with Converlible Capital Bonds issue (10}
310
M Net eash inflow/(outflow) from financing 213 (40) 103 1 8
Increase/({decrease) in cash and cash 2quivalents {73) u5 (203) 187 110

c%;, Page 4
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OPERATING STATISTICS
e For the fve yoart endied 31 March 1993 N
: SCHEDULED SERVICES o i 1 o m
Traffic and capacity
H Revenue passenger km (RPK) (m) 57,795 61,918 64,734 6589% FAs
Available seat km (ASK) (m) 82,934 86,601 93,399 91,877 104,567
Passenger load factor (%2) 69.6 705 702 0.2 70.8
! Cargo toane km (CTK) {m) 2249 2,400 2443 2510 2,691
Total reverue tanne km {RTK) (m) 7636 X 250 8,641 ars 9,738
‘Total available tonne ke (ATR) (m) 11,404 13,035 12,939 133 14,698
) Overall toad facior (%) 67.0 639 668 65.6 662
Passengers carrded (000) 22578 23,671 M3 23,758 25505
Tonnes of cargo carried (000) 459 498 306 502 L1}
Financiat
o Passenger revenue per RPK (p) 5.96 637 627 €50 £13
Cargo revenue per CTK (p) 15.25 1621 1827 1578 1472
,% Average fuel price (US cents/US gallon) 60,22 6072 80.72 o §9.32
Operations
Unduplicated route km (000) 677 68s 665 534 539
" Punctuality (% within 15 minutes) 72 72 3 » 1}
g Regularity (75) 99.0 959 87 9.2 993
TOTAL GROUP OPERATIONS
Total revenue tonne km (RTK) (m) 5002 8,627 8979 gri 16,313
r Total evailable tonne km (ATK) (m) 11,868 12,445 13,351 13,518 1840
L Passengers carried (000) 24,603 25,238 25,587 842 JEUT
y Average number of employees 30,204 52,054 54,427 e 48,550
RTKs per employee (000) 159.4 1657 165.0 1857 2156
ATKsper. ployee (000) 2364 2301 2453 214 3159
Aircralt in service at year end 21! ex¥) 230 230 Ay
Aircralt utilisation (average hours per aircrafi per annum) 2,836 2757 2,663 2,708 158
Revenue aireralt km (m) 364 375 359 390 431
Revenue flights (000) 269 2% 271 261 268
‘Total traffic revenue per RTK {p) +8.73 5136 5054 5255 43,28
Total traffic revenuce per ATK (p) 32.85 35.60 33.99 34.65 3295
Net operating expenditure per ATK (p) 30.02 32.52 24 J2l6 kIR
Break-even averall load factor (96) 616 6.3 .8 61.2 628
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MIRCRAFT FLEET
=
Number in service with Group companies at 31 Narch 1993
- Owrwd,
Jimznee beaser
] endonkie  On cxendible On acher st Arerage Averagr
b purchast artng persting yperating Furuy vy Aowrs pet e
f (Nore 1) 7 et Toval delvry Opciort howrs fws &inrigt pa. {yern)
Concorde 7 7 63583 M0 63
a Bocing 747-100 15 15 54,864 3458 209
Boeing 747-200 (Note 2) 13 3 16 68,789 4,299 123
Bocing 747400 {Nove 3) 12 13 25 s 2 117,90 5,101 5
Boeing 777 15 15
Lockhieed TriStar 1 and 100 5 ] 13,114 2350 183
McDonnel! Douglas DC-10-30 5 2 7 29,403 4,107 147
Boeing 767-300 (Note 4) 9 1 20 8 9 59978 3493 21
Boeing 757-200 {Nove 5) 37 3 2 42 3 1 110,097 27TH 67
Alrbus A320 10 10 24,820 2,482 41
E Boeing 737-200 (Noxe 8} 23 16 K 82,554 212 1.0
Boeing 737-300 (Nexe 7) 2 3 2,632 2,01 6.7
Boeing 732-400 {Nowe 8} 18 4 10 n 6 10 47,960 24M 16
a BAC1-11-500 6 6 33,870 1,864 2.1
BAc ATP 13 1 14 6 22491 1,654 28
E HS 748 20
Hired aircraft 249
Total 160 &5 15 2l 68 &3 617314 2,98 .2}

0
LA
5

Notes:
L. Excludes eleven Lockheed TriStars and one DC-10-30 siood down (of which tig Lockleed THStars kave beert sub-leased).
2. One aircraft was sold and leased back during the year.
3. One aircraft delivered at the end of the year did not enter service until April 1993,
4. One aircraft delivered in the previous financial year entered service during the year,
5. Two aircraft were sold and leased back and two aircraft sub-leased were rewirned,
6. Excludes four aircraft sub.leased 1o GB Airways.
7. Threz Dan-Air aircraft on other operaiing lease were added 10 the fleet during the year.
8. Nine Dan-Air aircraft on other operating lease were added to the flees during the year, One owned aircraft deltivered
at the end of the year did not enter service uniil Aprit 1993,

e
PN
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SHAREHOZDER INFORMATION
SHAREHOLDERS
As xl 10 May 1993 these were 252,016 sharcholders. An analysis s given below,
Percemoge of Perceniipe Becenssge of Pexccomge
Size of sharehokting arehciders of sares Chassifirarion of shoeialiing sharhaobioy of ey
1. 1,000 94.00 833 Individuals 9185 °nw
1,061 - 5,000 501 348 Nominee Companics 152 Ti0
5,001 - 10,000 0,47 1.06 Assurance & lnsurance Companies ons 410
10,001 - 50,000 0.2 1.84 Banks 007 i)
50,001 100,000 0.09 220 Pension Funds 0.02 o
100,001 - 250,000 0.69 485 {Invesiment Trusts & Funds 0.18 in
250,001 - 500,000 0.05 6.26 Other gorporate holders 031 157
500,001~ 750,000 0.02 442
750,001« 1,000,000 0.02 495
Over 1,000,000 0.03 62.61
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
The following have holdings in the Company in excess of three per cent of the [otal shares issued: Focerwge
sharcholing
The Chase Manhattan Bank N.A. (non-beneficial) 110
Tempicton Investment Management Lid 5%
Schroder Investment Management 497
The Capital Group Inc 426
Robert Fleming Holdings Ltd 100
Banng Investment Management kk 7

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, the Company's ADR Depositary, bas a non-beneficial interest in 13.32 per cent of the
shares in the name of Guaranty Nominees Limited. British Airways is not aware of any other interest in its shares of three per ceat or more,

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
A1 March 1993 Bricish Alrway T Bricish Anntyr Capisal Lt
”
Ordinary Shares Onlinary Shares Oyprions E fre Grnd ised Corvernic
Subject 10 1O PETLHCIONS Fubject ¥ renricrions SAVE Share Schemes during yeor Capisal Bordtt
M March FAprit 31 March 1Apnt 3 Murch 1Apet 3 Maech 1 Apd
1 199 1 o902 1193 1992 193 »o
Sir Colin Marshall 30,432 25,836 . - S76418 485435 4,5%6 11,304 11,304
Sir Michael Angus 3,000 3,000 . - . . . 1,333 1313
R J Ayling 5203 4459 . 744 1759 215,261 - - -
DM Stevens 5,050 5050 5,164 3403 815N 337,254 - 109 0
Captain CA Barnes 7,583 7953 473 4,723 69,976 69,976 - &4 644
AM Davies 5,060 5,060 . - - . - 2221 221
i Sir Prancis Kennedy 5250 52%0 1,860 1,660 165,666 166,666 - 1421 PR 24
» Hon Charles Pricc II * 10,000 10,000 . - . - . - -
Lord White 1,000 . . . . . . . .

72,918 66,638 12,747 16730 1435760 1,274,593 4,596

* Held in American Depositary Receipts,

The Dircctors’ interests st out above are in each case beneficial. The options under the Executive Share Option and Savings Related
Share Schemes are at prices varying wetween 135p and 276p per shaic.  No Director has any beneficial interest in shares in any subsidiary
underieking of the Company other than those shown above in the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital Boads 2005 in British Airways

Capital Limited, There have been no changes in the interests set out above between the end of the financizl year and 17 May 1993,

As a2 5 February 1993, the date of his resignation as a Director of the Company, Lord King of Wartnaby was shown in the register referced
to above as being interested in 119,596 Ordinary Shares and 13,332 Convertible Capital Bonds. As at 14 May 1993 he had options over

292,213 Ordinary Shares granted under the Exceutive Share Option Scheme prior to 5 Pebruary 1993,




E GENERAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR '
Financial year end Ji March 1993
" 4 Annual general meeling 13 July 1993

ANROUNCEMENT OF 1993-54 RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

First quaner results to 30 June 1993 August ]903

- Second quarter resufts to 30 September 1993 November 1993

Interim dividend November 1993 (payable January 19904)

‘Third quarter results to 31 December 1993 February 1994

Preliminary announcement mid May 1994

Report and Ascounts June 1994

H Finat dividend June 1984 {payable July 1994)
OUTSIDE ADVISERS

Company Registrars: Barclays Registrars.
ADR Depositary: Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York

‘Registered number - 1777777

British Airways is obliged by law to make its share register available on request to other organisations who may then use itas 2
mailing list. This may result in your receiving unsolicited niail. If you wish to limit the receipt of unsolicited mail you may do so by
writing to the Mailing Preference Service, an Independent organisation whose sezviees are free to you. Once your name and
address have been added 10 its recards, it will advise the companics and other bodies which sunport the service that you no jonger
wish to receive unsolicited mail. )

If you would fike more details please write to: The Maiting Preference Service, FREEPOST 22, London W1E 7EZ.

British Airways asks orgacisations which obtain its register to support this scrvice.

UNSOLICITED MAIL

GLOSSARY
Available Scat Kilometres (ASK): The produet of seats offered for sale and the distance over which they are carried,

A Awailable Tonne Kilometres (ATK): The measure of 1ransport praduction, The available tonne kilometres produced by a flight
arc the capacity for payload of the aircralt measured in tonnes (2,2041b), multiplied by the distance flown,

Revenue Passenger Kilometres (RPK): The product of passengers carried and the distance over which they are carried,
Revenue Tonne Kilometres (RTK): The product of revenue load in tonnes and the distance over which it is earried.

Break-cven Load Factor: The load factor required to cquate scheduled traffic revenue with operating costs, assuming that the
operating surplus of companies licensed 1o operate scheduled services is attributed entirely to those services,

IATA: Intemnational Air Transport Assoviation,
1CAQ: International Civi) Aviation Organisation,

Load Factor; The percentage relationship of revenud load earried to capacity provided. ‘The overall load facior relates RTK to
ATK The passeager load factor relates RPK to ASK.

Punetuality: The pareentage of flights departing within 15 minutes of schedule.

Regularity: The percentage of flights completed to Rights stheduled, excluding fsg s cancelled for commercial reasons.
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